
 
         

CITY OF SWEET HOME  
CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA   
November 12, 2019, 6:30 p.m. 
Sweet Home City Hall, 3225 Main Street 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 

 
 PLEASE silence all cell phones – Anyone who wishes to speak, please sign in. 
 
A. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
B. Roll Call:             

Councilor Coleman   Mayor Mahler  
   Councilor Gerson   Councilor Nash  
   Councilor Goble   Councilor Trask 
   Councilor Gourley 

 
C. Consent Agenda: 

a) Approval of Minutes:  October 22, 2019 City Council Minutes (pg. 3-6) 
                                   October 30, 2019 City Council Executive Session (pg. 7) 
                                   October 30, 2019 City Council Work Session (pg. 8) 
 

D. Recognition of Visitors and Hearing of Petitions: 
 
E. Old Business: 

 
a) Discussion Only – WEFTEC Trip Update and Project Schedule Presentation (pg. 9-32) 
b) Discussion Only – Intro to System Development Charges (SDC)/ Timeline – Murraysmith 
c) Request for Council Action – Adopt 2020 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) (pg. 33-71) 
d) Information Only – Utility Management - Letter to Jacobs (pg.72-73) 
e) Discussion Only – Jacobs Annual Report – Brian Helliwell, Regional Manager  
f) Information Only – Community Court Update  
g) Request for Council Action – Enhanced Law Enforcement Ordinance (pg. 74-80) 
h) Request for Council Action – 9th Avenue Purchase and Sale Agreement (pg. 81-105) 

 
F. New Business: 

a) Request for Council Action – Appointment to the Budget Committee (pg. 106-108) 
b) Request for Council Action – Appointment to the Charter Review Committee (pg. 109-

111) 
c) Request for Council Action – Updates to Personnel Policy Section 4(c) (pg. 112-114)  
d) Discussion Only – Mid-Valley Prosperity Partnership Economic Strategy and Action Plan 

(pg. 115-131)  
e) Discussion Only – Draft Transit Shelter Ordinance (pg. 132-134)  
f) Request for Council Action – December 24th City Council Meeting Schedule (pg.135) 

WIFI Passcode: 
guestwifi 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 1



g) Request for Council Action – Resolution No. 30 for 2019 – Authorizing Transfer of 
Appropriations (pg. 136-144) 

h) Request for Council Action – Resolution No. 31 – Authorizing Transfer of Funds to Cover 
Deficit (pg. 145-148) 
 

 
G. Ordinance Bills 

i. Request for Council Action and First Reading of Ordinance Bills   
ii. Second Reading of Ordinance Bills 
iii. Third Reading of Ordinance Bills (Roll Call Vote Required) 

 
 

H. Reports of Committees: 

Administrative & Finance/Property (Minutes 10-22-19)(pg. 149) Goble 

Park and Tree Committee  Trask 

Youth Advisory Council Gourley 

Chamber of Commerce Gerson 

Council of Governments  Gerson 

Area Commission on Transportation Mahler 

Solid Waste Advisory Council Goble 

Ad Hoc Committee on Health  Gourley 

Legislative Committee  Coleman 

 
I. Reports of City Officials:  

a) Mayor’s Report 
b) City Manager’s Report 
c) Department Director’s Reports: (1st Meeting of the Month) 

i. Library Services Director 
(1) Library Advisory Board Minutes (pg. 150) 
(2) Department Report (pg. 151) 
(3) Patron Statics (pg.152) 
(4) Circulation Statics (pg. 153) 

ii. Community and Economic Development Director  
(1) Department Report (pg. 154-156) 

iii. Public Works Director 
(1) Department Report (pg. 157-159) 

d) Department Director’s Reports: (2nd Meeting of the Month) 
i. Finance Director  

(1) 2021 Budget Calendar (pg. 160) 
ii. Police Chief 
iii. City Attorney’s Report  

 
J. Council Business for Good of the Order: 
 
K. Adjournment  

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 2



SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
October 22, 2019 

 

Mayor Mahler called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Sweet Home City Hall. The Pledge of 

Allegiance was recited. 

 

Staff Present: City Manager Ray Towry, City Attorney Robert Snyder, Public Works Director Greg 

Springman, Finance Director Brandon Neish, Police Chief Jeff Lynn, Community and Economic 

Development Director Blair Larsen and Library Services Director Rose Peda. 

 

Visitors Registered to Speak:  Jeri Reynolds, John Cannon 

 

Media: Sean Morgan, The New Era 

             

Roll Call: Councilor Coleman AB  Mayor Mahler             P 

  Councilor Gerson P  Councilor Nash P    

  Councilor Goble AB  Councilor  Trask P    

  Councilor Gourley AB 

 

Motion to excuse Councilors Coleman, Goble and Gourley (Trask/Nash) Motion passed with 4 Ayes 

and 3 Absent (Coleman, Goble, Gourley) 

 

Consent Agenda: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recognition of Visitors & Hearing 

of Petition: 

 

Old Business: 

 

Discussion Only – Code 

Enforcement Update 

 

 

      Jeri Reynolds 

 

Discussion Only – Capital 

Improvement Plan 

 

 

 

 

Discussion Only – Utility 

Management, Water Treatment 

Plant Audit 

 

 

 

Motion was made to approve the Consent Agenda as 

submitted (Gerson/Trask) Motion passed with 4 Ayes, 0 

Opposed, 3 Absent (Coleman, Goble, Gourley) 

 

Items on the consent agenda are as follows: 

Approval of Minutes:  October 8, 2019 Council Minutes  

            

 

            

 None 

 

 

                         

Code Enforcement Officer Tommy Mull presented the Council with 

an update on the code enforcement program.  A three-step 

compliance process was discussed and a city wide cleanup day 

will be scheduled. 

Jeri Reynolds spoke concerning barking dogs. 

 

Finance Director Neish introduced the Capital Improvement Plan 

which identified department requests and identified funding 

sources for each project.  Staff asked Council to review the CIP, 

contact staff with questions, and consider adoption of the plan 

during the November 12, 2019 meeting. 

 

Public Works Director Springman gave an update of the status of 

findings during the Wastewater Treatment Plant Audit.  The item 

will be back on the Council Agenda on November 12, 2019 for 

decision by the Council on future management of the plant. 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 3



 

Review of Council Goals and Work 

Plan Presentation 

 

 

 

Discussion Only – Enhanced Law 

Enforcement Area Ordinance 

 

      James Cannon 

 

Discussion Only – Livability 

Ordinance 

 

 

 

New Business: 

 

Public Hearing – Swet Home Cable 

Franchise Renewal 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Request for Council Action – Out of 

State Travel Request  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Request for Council Action – Sankey 

Park Property Line Adjustment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Request for Council Action and 

First Reading of Ordinance Bills 

 

Second Reading: 

 

 

 

 

 

City Manager Ray Towry reviewed Council Goals and ideas to 

address issues in the downtown corridor. Chief Lynn and CEDD 

Larsen reviewed the Downtown Vitalization and Economic 

Development Mind Map. 

 

Chief Lynn introduced the proposed Enhanced Law Enforcement 

Area Ordinance.   

 

James Cannon commented regarding the ordinance suggestions. 

 

City Manager Towry requested direction on the proposed Livability 

Ordinance.   Council requested a directive to first responders to 

report unhealthy living conditions to landlords and 

education/resource materials be sent to citizens thru utility billings. 

 

 

 

The Public Hearing was opened at 8:44pm.  Mayor Mahler 

explained the public hearing process.  Mayor Mahler asked of each 

Council if they had any Exparte Information, Conflict of Interest or 

Personal Bias, there was none.   

Staff gave a brief report to the Council regarding the renewal of the 

Comcast Franchise Agreement Renewal. 

Sean Morgan asked if he could submit a letter regarding the issue. 

There were no additional public comments. 

The Public Hearing was closed at 8:46pm. 

 

Chief Lynn presented the request for approval by the Council for 

out of state travel by a Sweet Home Police Detective to attend an 

annual conference for California Narcotics Officers Association 

(CNOA) in Reno, Nevada. 

Motion to approve out of state travel for Cyndi Pichardo to 

attend the CNOA Annual Conference with the Linn 

Interagency Narcotics Enforcement Team (Gerson/Nash). The 

motion passed with 4 Ayes, 0 Opposed and 3 Absent 

(Coleman, Goble, Gourley). 

 

Community and Economic Development Director Blair Larsen 

introduced the request for a property line adjustment at Sankey 

Park to aid in development of the park. 

Motion to approve and authorize the City Manager to sign 

Application PLA19-07 as presented (Trask/Gerson).  The 

motion passed with 4 Ayes, 0 Opposed and 3 Absent 

(Coleman, Goble, Gourley). 

 

None 

 

 

None 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 4



 

Third and Final Reading of 

Ordinance Bills: 

 

Ordinance No. 5 for 2019 –An 

Ordinance Amending the 

Unnecessary Noise Section of the 

Sweet Home Municipal Code  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Request for Council Action – 

Ordinance No. 6 for 2019 – An 

Ordinance Relating to Urinating or 

Defecating in Public Places. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Attorney Snyder read by title only Ordinance No. 5 for 2019 – 

Ordinance No. 1278 - An Ordinance Amending the Unnecessary 

Noise Section of the Sweet Home Municipal Code. 

 

Motion to Adopt Ordinance No. 5 for 2019 –Ordinance No. 

1278 - An Ordinance Amending the Unnecessary Noise 

Section of the Sweet Home Municipal Code (Trask/Gerson) 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Councilor Goble 

Councilor Gourley 

Mayor Mahler 

Councilor Nash 

Councilor Trask 

Councilor Coleman 

Councilor Gerson 

 

Motion passed with 4 Ayes, 0 Opposed and 3 Absent 

(Coleman, Goble, Gourley). 

 

City Manager Towry read by title only Ordinance No. 6 for 2019 – 

An Ordinance Relating to Urinating or Defecating in Public Places. 

 

Motion to Adopt Ordinance No. 6 for 2019 – An Ordinance 

Relating to Urinating or Defecating in Public Places 

(Trask/Gerson) 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Councilor Gourley 

Mayor Mahler 

Councilor Nash 

Councilor Trask 

Councilor Coleman 

Councilor Gerson 

Councilor Goble 

 

Motion passed with 4 Ayes, 0 Opposed and 3 Absent 

(Coleman, Goble, Gourley) 

 

 

 

  

Absent 

Aye 

Aye 

Aye 

Absent 

Aye 

Absent 

 

Absent 

Absent 

Aye 

Aye 

Aye 

Absent 

Aye 
 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 5



Reports of Committees: 

 

Administration & Finance/ 

Property Committee 

 

Park & Tree Commission 

 

 

Youth Advisory Council 

 

Chamber of Commerce 

 

Council of Governments (COG) 

 

 

No Report 

 

 

No Report 

 

 

No Report 

 

No Report 

 

No Report 

 

Area Commission on Transportation  

 

Solid Waste Advisory Council 

(SWAC) 

 

Ad Hoc Committee on Health 

 

Legislative Committee 

No Report 

 

No Report 

 

 

No Report 

 

No Report 

 

 

Reports of City officials 

 

Mayor’s Report  

 

City Manager’s Report 

 

 

 

 

Department Directors Reports 

 

 

City Attorney 

 

Council Business for Good of the 

Order: 

 

Adjournment: 

 

 

 

No Report 

 

City Manager Towry reported an internal Municipal Maintenance 

Worker position has been posted. 

City Manager Towry reminded the Council November is the month of 

his annual review by Council. 

 

 

Written reports were submitted by the following Departments:  

Finance and Police.   

 

No Report. 

 

None 

 

 

With no further business the meeting adjourned at 8:27 pm. 

  

The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council at the October 22, 2019 regular City 

Council Meeting. 

 

               

                        Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

              

City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 6



  SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

 
 October 30, 2019 
 
 
The City Council Executive Session was opened at 6:02 p.m. in the Sweet Home City Hall. 
 
Roll Call: Councilor Coleman  P   Mayor Mahler   P   
  Councilor Gerson  P  Councilor Nash  AB  
  Councilor Goble  P   Councilor Trask  P 
  Councilor Gourley  P    
     
Staff:  City Manager Ray Towry and Public Works Director Greg Springman 

 
Media: Sean Morgan 
 
Mayor Mahler read the Executive Session Announcement.   
 

The purpose of the meeting was an Executive Session pursuant to ORS 192.660 (2) (e), 
which allows the Council to meet in executive session to conduct deliberations with 
persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real property transactions. 
 

There was time for questions and comments, no official decisions were made.   
 
The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council at the October 30, 2019 
Executive Session City Council Meeting. 
 
 
              
           Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
                     
City Manager– Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 7



 SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING WORK SESSION MINUTES 

 
 October 30, 2019 
 
 
The City Council Work Session was opened at 6:31 p.m. in the Sweet Home City Hall. 
 
Roll Call: Councilor Coleman P  Mayor Mahler             P 

  Councilor Gerson P  Councilor Nash AB    

  Councilor Goble P  Councilor Trask P    

  Councilor Gourley P    

     
Staff:  City Manager Ray Towry and Public Works Director Greg Springman 
 

Media: Sean Morgan, The New Era 
 
The purpose of the meeting was to review options for the management of utility plants and review 
of the draft Expulsion Ordinance. 
 
Public Works Director Greg Springman reviewed information regarding the Wastewater Utility 
Management and led conversation regarding equipment replacement, maintenance repairs and 
associated costs.   PW Director Springman suggested directions for future management of the 
plants which included options to renegotiate or terminate the contract with Jacobs, enter into a 
contract with another firm to assume operations, or hire and train staff for internal operation.  
Council made no formal action.  The item will be placed on the November 12, 2019 Agenda for 
decision. 
 
Council reviewed and discussed the draft Expulsion Ordinance.  By consensus the Exemption 
Zone Map identified will remain and three arrests over a twelve-month period would initiate the 
expulsion.  Also by Consensus, the Council decided there was no need for a sunset, but 
requested data on the downtown crime rate, neighborhood crime rate and individual tracking.  
There was no change to how exemptions are given. 
Staff will investigate Community Courts and their success in other cities.   The Council will vote on 
the draft Expulsion Ordinance during the November 12, 2019 City Council Meeting. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:02 p.m. 
  
The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council at the October 30, 2019 

City Council Work Session Meeting. 
 
              
           Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
                     
City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 8



WEFTEC 2019

WWTP Equipment Evaluations Summary

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 9



• W E

F T

E C

•

•

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 10



•

•

•

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 11



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 12



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 13



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 14



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 15



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 16



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 17



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 18



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 19



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 20



MAINTENANCE: WOULD WE RATHER…

Twist/Slide on 

hundreds of 

disks

Clamp on 

dozens of 

tubes

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 21



•

•

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 22



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 23



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 24



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 25



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 26



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 27



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 28



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 29



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 30



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 Final Design 391 days? Tue 9/3/19 Tue 3/2/21

2 Task 1 - Project Management (Final Design) 396 days Tue 9/3/19 Tue 3/9/21

3 1.1 Project Kickoff Meeting 0 days Tue 9/3/19 Tue 9/3/19

4 1.2 Project Management Plan 10 days Tue 9/3/19 Mon 9/16/19

5 1.3 Monthly Project Status Reports 340 days Wed 11/20/19 Tue 3/9/21

6 1.4 Biweekly Project Check-in Conference Calls 340 days Wed 11/20/19 Tue 3/9/21

7 1.5 Internal Team Coordination and Bi-Monthly Conference Calls 340 days Wed 11/20/19 Tue 3/9/21

8 Task 2 - Schematic Design Development and Value Engineering 108 days? Tue 9/3/19 Thu 1/30/20

9 2.1 Additional Geotechnical Data Collection 30 days Tue 9/3/19 Mon 10/14/19

10 2.2 Additional Survey Data Collection and Control 30 days Tue 9/3/19 Mon 10/14/19

11 2.3 Antidegradation Evalaution for NPDES Permit Mass Load Increase 60 days Tue 9/3/19 Mon 11/25/19

12 2.4 Schematic Design Development & Preliminary Engineering Report 90 days Tue 9/3/19 Mon 1/6/20

13 Schematic Design and PER Submittal 0 days Mon 1/6/20 Mon 1/6/20

14 2.5 VE Study Support Services 65 days Fri 11/1/19 Thu 1/30/20

15      VE Study Team RFP Out 0 days Thu 11/21/19 Thu 11/21/19

16      VE Study 5 days? Mon 1/13/20 Fri 1/17/20

17 2.6 WWTP Equipment Site Visits and Reference Checks 40 days Fri 11/1/19 Thu 12/26/19

18 2.7 Design Development Workshops (2 workshops) 86 days Wed 9/25/19 Thu 1/23/20

19 Design Development Workshop #1 0 days Tue 10/29/19 Tue 10/29/19

20 Design Development Workshop #2 0 days Tue 12/17/19 Tue 12/17/19

21 Task 3 – 60% WWTP Final Design 140 days Tue 1/7/20 Mon 7/20/20

22 3.1 Environmental Permitting Support Services 80 days Tue 1/7/20 Mon 4/27/20

23 3.2 WWTP Biological Process Model Update 60 days Tue 1/7/20 Mon 3/30/20

24 3.3 WTP/WWTP O&M and Automation Evaluation 60 days Tue 1/7/20 Mon 3/30/20

25 3.4 WWTP SCADA System Technology Selection 60 days Tue 1/7/20 Mon 3/30/20

26 3.5 60% Design & Submittal 120 days Tue 1/7/20 Mon 6/22/20

27 60% Design Submittal Date 0 days Mon 6/22/20 Mon 6/22/20

28 3.6 60% Design Constructability and Operations Reviews 15 days Tue 6/23/20 Mon 7/13/20

29 3.7 60% Design Review Workshop 0 days Mon 7/13/20 Mon 7/13/20

30 3.8 DEQ 60% Design Review Meeting 0 days Mon 7/20/20 Mon 7/20/20

31 Task 4 – 90% WWTP Final Design 124 days Mon 7/13/20 Thu 12/31/20

32 4.1 NPDES Permit Renewal Support Services 80 days Tue 7/14/20 Mon 11/2/20

33 4.2 Biosolids Management Plan Update 80 days Tue 7/14/20 Mon 11/2/20

34 4.3 Design Phase SCADA System and Network Security Systems Development 80 days Tue 7/14/20 Mon 11/2/20

35 4.4 90% Design & Submittal 80 days Tue 7/14/20 Mon 11/2/20

36 90% Design Submittal Date 0 days Mon 11/2/20 Mon 11/2/20

37 4.5 90% Design Constructability and Operations Reviews 15 days Tue 11/3/20 Mon 11/23/20

38 4.6 90% Design Review Workshop 0 days Mon 11/23/20 Mon 11/23/20

39 Task 5 - Final Contract Documents (Final CDs) 76 days Tue 11/24/20 Tue 3/9/21

40 5.1 Prepare Draft Final CDs 45 days Tue 11/24/20 Mon 1/25/21

41 5.2 Draft Final CDs Review Workshop 0 days Tue 1/26/21 Tue 1/26/21

42 5.3 Stamped Structural Calculations 30 days Wed 1/27/21 Tue 3/9/21

43 5.4 Building Official Review Coordination 30 days Wed 1/27/21 Tue 3/9/21

44 5.5 Prepare Final CDs 30 days Wed 1/27/21 Tue 3/9/21

45 5.6 Electronic Constrution Document Management System Selection 20 days Wed 1/27/21 Tue 2/23/21

46 5.7 Special Inspections and Testing Firm Selection 20 days Wed 1/27/21 Tue 2/23/21

47 Bidding, Contracts and Construction Services 683 days Wed 3/10/21 Fri 10/20/23

48 Bidding and CM Project Management 683 days Wed 3/10/21 Fri 10/20/23

49 Final Design Approvals and Preparation for Bidding 60 days Wed 3/10/21 Tue 6/1/21

50 Bidding 23 days Wed 6/2/21 Fri 7/2/21

51 Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting 0 days Mon 6/7/21 Mon 6/7/21

52 Bid Opening Date 0 days Thu 7/1/21 Thu 7/1/21

53 Bid Evaluation Support and Recommendation of Award 20 days Mon 7/5/21 Fri 7/30/21

54 City Council Contract Award 0 days Fri 7/30/21 Fri 7/30/21

55 City Issue Notice to Proceed 0 days Fri 8/13/21 Fri 8/13/21

56 Construction to Substantial Completion (21 months) 457 days Mon 8/16/21 Tue 5/16/23

57 WWTP Startup, Commissioning and Final Completion (3 months) 60 days Wed 5/17/23 Tue 8/8/23

58 Current Proposed Completion Date 0 days Mon 8/7/23 Mon 8/7/23

9/3

1/6

11/21

10/29

12/17

6/22

7/13

7/20

11/2

11/23

1/26

6/7

7/1

7/30

8/13

8/7

A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D
Qtr 3, 2019 Qtr 4, 2019 Qtr 1, 2020 Qtr 2, 2020 Qtr 3, 2020 Qtr 4, 2020 Qtr 1, 2021 Qtr 2, 2021 Qtr 3, 2021 Qtr 4, 2021 Qtr 1, 2022 Qtr 2, 2022 Qtr 3, 2022 Qtr 4, 2022 Qtr 1, 2023 Qtr 2, 2023 Qtr 3, 2023 Qtr 4, 2023

PROJECT SCHEDULE

WWTP FINAL DESIGN, BIDDING AND CONSTRUCTION
CITY OF SWEET HOME

Revised October 29, 2019
\\ad.msa-ep.com\Portland\PDX_Projects\19\2605 - Sweet Home Final Design\Task1_PM\Schedule\Schedule_SweetHomeWWTP_FinalDesign_CM_29Oct2019_External.mpp 

Murraysmith WWTP IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT
City of Sweet Home, Oregon

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 31



REQUEST FOR  
COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
November 12, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
B. Neish, Finance Director 
REVIEWED BY: 
R. Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
Capital Improvement Plan 
ATTACHMENTS:   
2020 Capital Improvement 
Plan 

TYPE OF ACTION: 

       RESOLUTION 

       MOTION 

       OTHER 

 
RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
ORS 223.304 (2)(a)(A) 
ORS 223.309 (1) 

 
TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
1.2: Increase community awareness of infrastructure 
needs and appropriate planning docs  
2.5: Continue to implement best financial practices 

 
PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:   
To review and approve the 2020 Capital Improvement Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) states that “state and local governments 
[should] prepare and adopt comprehensive, fiscally sustainable and multi-year capital plans to 
ensure effective management of capital assets.” In line with a City Council goal and to better 
plan for the City’s financial future, City staff began developing a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
which would inform the current year proposed budget and the next five years. Department 
Heads submitted a “wish-list” of projects and equipment needs for their Departments. The 
Finance Department compiled each of these submittals into a document and identified a funding 
source and fiscal year for most of the requests. Those projects for which a funding source could 
not be identified were included in the plan as resources over a five-year span could change or 
another source could be identified which would allow the City to complete the project or 
purchase. 
 
In March 2019, City staff presented the proposed projects to the City Council during the Council 
Training. Staff highlighted the potential funding issues in the outlying years of the capital plan as 
projects requiring significant dollars do not have corresponding resources to cover the costs. 
With feedback from the City Council, staff then compiled a draft CIP which was provided to the 
Budget Committee during the budget approval process and was included with the City Council’s 
budget during the budget adoption meetings to supplement the 2020 budget. The 2020 budget 
was adopted on May 28, 2019 by the Council and included the first year of projects and 
equipment aimed at improving the lives of residents and providing better service. 
 
A CIP not only informs long-range financial planning but is also required when establishing 
system development charges (SDC) according to ORS 223.304. “Improvement fees must be 
established or modified by ordinance or resolution setting forth a methodology that is available 
for public inspection and demonstrates consideration of the projected cost of the capital 
improvements identified in the [Capital Improvement] plan and list adopted pursuant to ORS 
223.309.” Specifically, ORS 223.309 requires a capital improvement plan prior to the 
establishment of a system development charge. 
 
The City of Sweet Home currently has some of the lowest SDCs in the state of Oregon with fees 
for water and sewer infrastructure and has no SDCs for parks or streets. In September 2019, 
staff began working with Murraysmith, Engineer of Record, to evaluate and revise the current 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 32



SDC fees. While staff had been proactive in developing a CIP for fiscal planning, the CIP must 
now be formalized and used as part of the SDC review. 
 
The CIP is a living, breathing document that will be reviewed annually and adjusted to remove 
completed projects and add projects to continue a five-year planning document that informs the 
City’s fiscal projections. This five-year plan ensures fiscal stability in the long-term and gives 
staff a chance to find additional resources to fund projects for which the city does not have 
funding available through fund balances, user fees, system development fees or property taxes. 
Each year as part of the budget adoption process, the Budget Committee and the City Council 
will have a chance to review these changes and recommend adjustments in alignment with 
Council goals and the needs of the citizenry. 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
Should the City have a five-year plan outlining projects and equipment needs to be used for 
budget forecasting, system development fee revisions and community input of city projects? 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

• City of Sweet Home Citizens and Businesses – The City of Sweet Home works for the 
citizens and businesses in Sweet Home. Both benefit from the projects the City 
completes such as road maintenance, utility line repairs and work done in City parks. 
The CIP should mirror what the community wants to see improved in their town.  

• City of Sweet Home Staff – A CIP helps staff plan for projects that will be coming. For 
example, road projects take significant engineering and planning before construction. 
This document prepares staff for these projects and appropriates funding in specific 
fiscal years to address these planning needs and plan for construction. 

• City of Sweet Home City Council – The City Council represents the citizenry in Sweet 
Home. The Council establishes goals that City staff work to achieve which is done, in 
part, through this planning document. The CIP also backs up the annual budget 
document which the Council reviews for adoption.  

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
The total 2020 CIP consists of 50 projects with an estimated fiscal impact of $35 million over 
five years. Funding sources have not been identified for all projects and will need to be reviewed 
annually to determine how best to fund these projects and equipment needs. 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION:  
A decision from the City Council as to the viability of the CIP and whether it meets the goals and 
direction the Council has set forth for the City. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing. Council could choose to do nothing at this time. Projects will continue for 
2020 as approved by the Budget Committee and adopted by the City Council and will be 
developed annual for budget. The City will also maintain current system development 
fees which are some of the lowest in the state thereby impacting future infrastructure 
projects and resources for those projects.   

2. Approve the 2020 Capital Improvement Plan as presented. 
3. Recommend revisions for the 2020 Capital Improvement Plan. Council could suggest 

changes to the draft plan which would be brought to a future Council meeting for review. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends options 2, approve the 2020 Capital Improvement Plan as presented. This 
option allows staff to continue working with Murraysmith to develop a methodology and 
calculation for updating system development fees and informs future budgetary needs for the 
City. 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 33



 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
   

PLAN 
 

City of Sweet Home 
 

  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 34



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Introduction ..................................................... 3 

CAPITAL PLAN .............................................. 5 

Library ........................................................ 5 

Police ......................................................... 7 

Public Works .............................................. 9 

 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 35



INTRODUCTION 

The City of Sweet Home is located in Oregon's mid-Willamette Valley next to the Santiam 
River and is home to nearly 9,000 residents. Incorporated in 1893, the city originally grew as 
the result of extensive logging operations and transformed over time into Linn County's third 
largest city and is the 52nd largest city in Oregon. Today, Sweet Home is a comfortable 
community with a small town feel that boasts tourist opportunities such as Foster Lake and the 
annual Oregon Jamboree, a country concert that draws 15,000 people to the city. The 
government in Sweet Home consists of a City Council and a City Manager. The Council is 
elected by the residents of the city and they in turn appoint the City Manager to operate the 
government. 

The City’s municipal government provides services to businesses and individuals including, but 
not limited to, a full-service library, police and dispatch services, water and sewer operations 
and parks and street maintenance. Each of these services is funded either by user fees for 
service or tax dollars generated through property taxes or provided by the state. In addition to 
operation funds which allow for the continued function of each department, capital projects are 
also budgeted and used to upgrade or replace aging infrastructure and build-out essential 
services. Due to the size of most capital projects, a Capital Improvement Plan is needed to 
plan for the future and ensure adequate financial resources are available in the long-term. 

The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) provided herein represents a five-year plan developed by 
staff and reviewed by the community and the City Council to ensure alignment of goals and 
needs. This plan is a living, breathing document intended to help prioritize, identify, arrange 
financing and allow for timely technical design and application of projects and programs to 
better serve the citizens of Sweet Home. Each year during budget development, staff will 
review the CIP to ensure conformance with Council goals and update the project list as needs 
change and projects are completed. In completing this plan, the City Council and City staff are 
demonstrating fiscal sustainability for Sweet Home and ensuring that the community is healthy 
and vibrant in the future to attract any opportunity that arises. 

The included capital projects and equipment needs in this plan total $35 million over the next 
five years. While most of the included items have identified funding sources, some have not 
yet been identified which will need to happen prior to project initiation or equipment purchase. 
This primarily occurs within Public Works projects where available resources are user-fee 
driven. These fees are collected through water and sewer rates that the city strives to keep as 
low as possible for affordability reasons. However, large-scale projects such as those included 
in this plan are critical needs for the City and will require either borrowing or raising rates to 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 36



complete. As the project gets closer, resources will be identified using a mix of options 
including the use of existing fund balances. 

The CIP is separated by department, and in the case of Public Works, by division. The 
departments/divisions include: 

• Library 

• Police 

• Public Works 

o Parks & Facilities 

o Water 

o Wastewater 

o Storm Water 

o Streets 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 37



CAPITAL PLAN 

Library 
The Sweet Home Public Library was built in 1969 on the corner of 13th and Kalmia. Today, the 
same library building still standings having had only minor upgrades internally to meet 
changing needs and pack as much of what makes the Library a library, books. 

Since 1969, demand for library services – e.g. circulation, programs, meeting space and public 
computer use – has grown steadily, outpacing the library’s ability to provide services 
physically. The existing building’s capacity is no longer adequate to meet these needs. To 
address these needs, the City needs to perform a needs assessment and hire an architect. 

A needs assessment will attempt to determine how well the existing structure is providing 
essential services and its structural viability for a remodel. Community input will be sought that 
engages and gathers input from stakeholders. The assessment will focus on these items: 

• Learning, collaborating and experimenting: The core function of the library is to 
provide a safe, inviting atmosphere to foster learning. The countless books provide 
individuals with valuable resources to advance their skills through history and non-fiction 
while also giving them an escape through the world of fiction. The library also provides a 
space for kids and teens but currently lacks functional space to create a makerspace 
where they can design, create, craft and explore. 

• Connectivity: Data cabling in the building is outdated and is visibly stretched around 
the building used to build a network of public access computers and printing for 
community members. Additionally, the electrical setup in the building is beyond its 
useful capacity and does not include space for individuals with tablets, computers and 
phones that need to charge. 

• Private space: Study rooms and meeting rooms are part of most current public libraries 
which provides a space for community events, meetings and silent study congruent with 
the library’s moto to “share knowledge, resources and expertise.” 

• Renewal: The building is 50 years old and it is noticeable. Old furniture, desks and 
carpet, coupled with the exterior of the building demonstrates the need for a visual 
upgrade. 

 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 38



 

Project/Asset: Library Renovation 

Budget Year: 2019-2020 

Description: Develop a plan based on input from stakeholders for a revitalized 
or new library facility. 

Estimated Cost: 
Needs Assessment - $15,000 

Architect - $100,000 

Proposed Fund (s): Library Services Levy 

 

 

 

  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 39



Police  
The Police Department ‘s primary focus over the next five years will be upgrading 
infrastructure related to dispatch and communications. Vehicles are another capital expense 
that the Police Department regularly incurs as vehicles are cycled in and out maintaining peak 
efficiency and minimizing excessive maintenance costs. 

The dispatch consoles are the most important upgrade which is slated for completion during 
the 2020 fiscal year. The current console is 18 years old and using a system that is no longer 
manufactured but parts are still available for resale. These systems were built to last and while 
many agencies have already upgraded, Sweet Home has been able to use the current system 
for an extended period. 

 

Project/Asset: Dispatch Console Upgrades 

Budget Year: 2019-2020 

Description: 
Upgrade aging Zetron dispatch system with a modern, IP based 
system to improve efficiency and effectiveness in call-taking and 
dispatch coordination. 

Estimated Cost: $120,000 

Proposed Fund(s): 
Public Safety Levy 

Project/Equipment Reserve (donated funds) 

  

Project/Asset: Radio Repeater Upgrade 

Budget Year: 2022-2023 

Description: Upgrade Quantar Radio Repeater used for communication over 
Police radio system. 

Estimated Cost: $50,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Public Safety Levy 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 40



Project/Asset: Patrol Vehicle Replacements 

Budget Year: Annually 

Description: 
Replace police vehicles that have peaked in efficiency and 
mechanically. Police vehicles are purchased after a three (3) year 
lease. 

Estimated Cost: $40,000 per vehicle 

Proposed Fund(s): Public Safety Levy 

 

  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 41



Public Works 
The Public Works Department contains the largest capital outlay budget due to the 
infrastructure managed by the department. Public Works contains five divisions: 

• Parks & Facilities 

• Water 

• Wastewater 

• Storm Water 

• Streets 

Each section of the Public Works CIP targets projects that the department believes could be 
completed within the next five (5) years, identifies possible funds and lists the year the project 
is targeted for construction.  

 

Parks & Facilities 

The City of Sweet Home has an established city-wide park system that provides a variety of 
recreational opportunities to all citizens and visitors. Currently the city maintains eight parks, 
including a skate park and the Hobart Wildlife Habitat. The 2017 Budget Committee and City 
Council both made the parks program a priority for the city and added a crew leader to the 
budget to oversee maintenance of those parks and city facilities. 

Maintenance at City parks is a major priority for the City as we enter this next budget year. 
Significant progress has been made at Sankey Park to return the park to its former glory. As 
part of the 2019 adopted budget, the City replaced the restroom at Sankey Park and 
constructed better pathways from the parking lot to the main section of the park. Remaining 
funding in the 2019 budget and future budgets are used to clear shrubbery around the park 
and improve various aspects of the parks’ infrastructure. 

  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 42



Project/Asset: FY 2019-2020 Sankey Park Improvements 

Budget Year: 2019-2020 

Description: 

Construct improvements to the Sankey Park plaza, upgrade 
lighting, improve the playground, BMX track, bike racks and tables 
and benches. Subject to potential grant funding, this project would 
also include remaining path lighting, trails and benches on the 
hillside and upper Sankey. 

Estimated Cost: $440,000 

Proposed Fund(s): 
General Fund 

Grant funds from Oregon Parks and Recreation Grant 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 43



Project/Asset: Strawberry Park Improvements (Phase 1) 

Budget Year: 2020-2021 

Description: 

Design and construct sidewalk from Westwood Lane and improve 
playground space, drainage system and remove the chain link 
path section. 

Design and construct parking lot, loop trail, improve irrigation 
system, add garden space, trees and creek plants and improve 
wetland borders. 

Design and construct restroom. 

Estimated Cost: $159,000 

Proposed Fund(s): General Fund 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 44



Project/Asset: FY 2020-2021 Sankey Park Improvements 

Budget Year: 2020-2021 

Description Construct bathroom, tables and benches in upper Sankey Park. 

Estimated Cost: $40,000 

Proposed Fund(s): General Fund 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 45



Project/Asset: Northside Park Improvements 

Budget Year: 2021-2022 

Description: 
Design and construct playground and river access trail. 

Install ramp/stairs/railing, signage, tables, benches, pet stations, 
trash cans, BBQ, gardens, trees and creek plants. 

Estimated Cost: $55,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 46



Project/Asset: Clover Memorial Park Improvements 

Budget Year: 2021-2022 

Description: 

Design and construct play structure, gardens, trees, creek plants, 
additional drainage system, trash cans, pet stations, BBQ, picnic 
tables and benches. Remove portion of Fountain Hill to improve 
visibility. 

Estimated Cost: $50,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 47



Project/Asset: Hobart Wildlife Habitat Improvements 

Budget Year: 2021-2022 

Description: 
Design and construct approach roadway from 35th Avenue. 

Add gardens, trees and creek plants. 

Estimated Cost: $20,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 48



Project/Asset: FY2022-2023 Sankey Park Improvements 

Budget Year: 2022-2023 

Description: Construct path connection to 16th Avenue and Fir Street. 

Estimated Cost: $60,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 49



Project/Asset: FY2022-2023 Strawberry Park Improvements 

Budget Year: 2022-2023 

Description: Design and construct loop trail Phase 2 and either pavilion or 
second play structure. 

Estimated Cost: $65,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 50



Project/Asset: FY2022-2023 Northside Park Improvements 

Budget Year: 2022-2023 

Description: Design and construct sidewalk on Redwood Street frontage and 
sidewalk connection to 12th Avenue. 

Estimated Cost: $35,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 51



Project/Asset: FY2022-2023 Ashbrook Park Improvements 

Budget Year: 2022-2023 

Description: Design and construct curb and sidewalk on Juniper Street 
frontage and pave parking lane on Juniper Street. 

Estimated Cost: $20,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 52



Project/Asset: FY2022-2023 Hobart Wildlife Habitat Improvements 

Budget Year: 2022-2023 

Description: 

Design and construct parking area primary loop. 

Add signage, trash cans, pet stations, BBQ, picnic tables and 
benches. Project will include boardwalk if grant funding is 
awarded. 

Estimated Cost: $60,000 (without boardwalk) 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 53



Project/Asset: FY2023-2024 Sankey Park Improvements 

Budget Year: 2023-2024 

Description: Design and construct pedestrian bridge from Sankey Park to the 
Jim Riggs Community Center. 

Estimated Cost: $200,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 54



Project/Asset: FY2023-2024 Hobart Wildlife Habitat Improvements 

Budget Year: 2023-2024 

Description: Design and construct parking area secondary loop and parking 
area off Foothills Drive. 

Estimated Cost: $25,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 55



Water 

The City operates and maintains a Water Treatment Plant (WTP) and appropriate distribution 
systems in accordance with strict governmental regulations while providing safe potable water 
and protecting the health of the environment. Numerous activities are associated with the 
production of potable water. Equipment operation and maintenance is accomplished on 
pumps, valves, motors, compressors, chemical feed machines, flow meters, pressure meters 
and filters. Production averages approximately one million gallons per day with peak days in 
excess of 2.5 million gallons. To accomplish this feat, the plan runs seven days a week, 365 
days a year. 

Monitoring activities include flow monitoring at the filtration plant, level monitoring of the 
reservoirs and chemical and biological laboratory testing. Daily lab tests for turbidity, chlorine 
concentration, fluoride concentration and pH are performed. Periodic testing is provided by 
private certified laboratories for 83+/- parameters including fecal coliforms, inorganic 
contaminants, radioactive contaminants and organic contaminants. 

Our goal is to continue to produce superior quality potable water that resulted in the city 
earning the Overall Best Drinking Water in Oregon award for 2016. 

 

Project/Asset: Water Treatment Plant Upgrades 

Budget Year: 2019-2020 

Description: Design and construct upgrades to the Sodium Hypochlorite 
system. 

Estimated Cost: $50,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Water Capital 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 56



Project/Asset: Design Water Reservoir 

Budget Year: 2019-2020 

Description: 
Evaluate location for new water reservoir (or rehabilitation of 
current) to increase storage capacity and equalize water 
distribution system pressure throughout the City. 

Estimated Cost: $300,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Water Depreciation Fund 

 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 57



Project/Asset: 9th Avenue 2-inch Water Main Replacement 

Budget Year: 2020-2021 

Description 

Design and construct infrastructure replacing the aging 2” water 
distribution mains to support capacity and pressure. Includes 
street overlay of 9th Avenue between Oak Terrace and Cedar 
Street 

Estimated Cost: $500,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Water Depreciation, Streets Enterprise and Path Program 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 58



Project/Asset: Construct/Rehabilitate Water Reservoir 

Budget Year: 2020-2021 

Description: Construct a new reservoir or rehabilitate a current reservoir to 
increase storage capacity and address system pressure issues. 

Estimated Cost: $2,500,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

Project/Asset: Northern Transmission Main (Phase 1) 

Budget Year: 2020-2021 

Description: Design infrastructure for Quarry Park and Willow Street to Clark 
Mill Road. 

Estimated Cost: $80,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Water Capital 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 59



Project/Asset: Spruce Street Water Main Replacement 

Budget Year: 2020-2021 

Description: Design and construct infrastructure to replace aging 2” water 
distribution mains. 

Estimated Cost: $75,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Water Enterprise Fund 

  

Project/Asset: 12th to 14th Avenue Water Main Replacement 

Budget Year: 2020-2021 

Description: Design and construct infrastructure to replace aging 2” water 
distribution mains. 

Estimated Cost: $350,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

Project/Asset: Nandina Street (22nd) 2” Water Main Replacement 

Budget Year: 2020-2021 

Description: 
Design and construct infrastructure to replace aging 2” water 
distribution mains. Will be completed in-house by Public Works 
staff. 

Estimated Cost: $20,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Water Enterprise 

  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 60



Project/Asset: 13th and 15th Avenue Water Main Replacement 

Budget Year: 2021-2022 

Description: Design and construct infrastructure to replace aging 2” water 
distribution mains. 

Estimated Cost: $340,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

Project/Asset: Northern Transmission Main (Phase 1) 

Budget Year: 2021-2022 

Description: Construct infrastructure for Quarry Park and Willow Street to Clark 
Mill Road. 

Estimated Cost: $700,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

Project/Asset: Water Master Plan Update 

Budget Year: 2021-2022 

Description: Evaluate, model and document long-range planning for water 
distribution system. 

Estimated Cost: $100,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 61



Project/Asset: 22nd Avenue Alleys 2” Water Main Replacement 

Budget Year: 2022-2023 

Description: Design and construct infrastructure to replace aging 2” water 
distribution mains. 

Estimated Cost: $150,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

Project/Asset: Sunset Lane 2” Water Main Replacement 

Budget Year: 2022-2023 

Description: Design and construct infrastructure to replace aging 2” water 
distribution mains. 

Estimated Cost: $320,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

Project/Asset: Northern Transmission Main (Phase 2) 

Budget Year: 2022-2023 

Description: 
Design infrastructure to add new transmission main from Clark 
Mill Road to Foster as a new loop to support capacity and 
pressure. 

Estimated Cost: $150,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 62



Project/Asset: Northern Transmission Main (Phase 2) 

Budget Year: 2022-2023 

Description: 
Construct infrastructure to add new transmission main from Clark 
Mill Road to Foster as a new loop to support capacity and 
pressure. 

Estimated Cost: $1,500,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

Project/Asset: Nandina Street (9th to 15th) 2” Water Main Replacement 

Budget Year: 2023-2024 

Description: Design and construct infrastructure to replace aging 2” water 
distribution mains. 

Estimated Cost: $605,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

Project/Asset: 4th Avenue and Long Street 2-4” Water Main Replacement 

Budget Year: 2023-2024 

Description: Design and construct infrastructure to replace aging 2-4” water 
distribution mains. 

Estimated Cost: $370,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 63



Wastewater 

The City operates and maintains a Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) and appropriate 
collection systems in accordance with strict governmental regulations for wastewater 
collections and reclamation, while protecting the health of the environment. This facility 
consists of six-unit processes, including influent pumping, aeration, clarification, sludge 
dewatering and disposal, disinfections and two gravity filters that are operated during certain 
periods throughout the year. Laboratory facilities which support the operations and comply with 
state and federal mandates are also associated with the overall operation and maintenance, 
cleaning of grounds and facilities, sludge dewatering and disposal activities, process operation, 
monitoring and reporting. 

The monitoring activities are composed of effluent flow monitoring and lab testing. The city 
maintains a water quality lab for the purpose of meeting state and federal regulations for 
treatment and discharge of municipal sewage. In-house analysis includes daily, weekly and 
monthly testing for Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD), fecal coliforms, suspended solids, 
volatile solids and total solids as well as chlorine concentration and pH. Certified private 
laboratories perform annual and periodic testing for inorganic toxic chemicals (heavy metals), 
organic toxic chemicals (pesticides) and radioactive contamination. All data from these 
monitoring activities are collected, correlated and entered into appropriate report formats for 
submittal to the regulatory agencies (DEQ and EPA). 

Other objectives are to try to meet discharge permit requirements within feasible limits set forth 
under our new NPDES Discharge Permit; continue operations with effluent recycling and 
sludge watering improvements; and continue replacement reserve. 

The primary focus of the coming year in the Wastewater division is the replacement and 
rehabilitation of the WWTP. In December 2017, the City selected Murraysmith to lead the 
project and design the new plant. Included in this budget is just over ¾ of a million dollars to 
begin the design work and prepare for future construction. This funding is being made 
available from resources set aside in the Wastewater Depreciation Fund specifically for major 
projects such as this. Once completed, slated for early-2023, the new plant will greatly improve 
collection efforts and exceed many of the requirements specified by DEQ for municipal 
wastewater facilities. 

  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 64



Project/Asset: Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvement Project (Final 
Design) 

Budget Year: 2019-2021 

Description: Engineering design of improvements for the WWTP. 

Estimated Cost: $3,400,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Wastewater Depreciation 

  

Project/Asset: Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvement Project 
(Construction) 

Budget Year: 2021-2023 

Description: Rehabilitate and construct new components to Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. 

Estimated Cost: $24,800,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Wastewater Depreciation 

  

Project/Asset: Manhole Ring & Cover Replacement Project 

Budget Year: Annually 

Description Identify and replace aged manhole ring and covers throughout the 
collection system. 

Estimated Cost: $15,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Wastewater Enterprise 

  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 65



Project/Asset: Manhole Structure Rehabilitation/Replacement Project 

Budget Year: Annually 

Description: Identify and replace aged manhole structures throughout the 
collection system. 

Estimated Cost: $50,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Wastewater Enterprise 

  

Project/Asset: Main Street from 18th Avenue to 22nd Avenue 

Budget Year: 2022-2023 

Description: 
Sewer main decreases in size from a 12” to 8” sewer main 
downstream of McDonalds. Upsize sewer main downstream of 
McDonalds to relieve bottleneck. 

Estimated Cost: $220,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

 

Storm Water 

Due to anticipated government requirements as well as City Council directive, the city 
established a Storm Water Drainage Utility in 2008. As there are many storm water 
drainage/flooding problems in various areas throughout Sweet Home, a user rate of $1.00 per 
equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) was determined to be in the best interest of the citizenry. The 
Storm Water system is part of the collection system and therefore shares employees to 
complete necessary work. 

  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 66



Project/Asset: 38th Avenue and Long Street Drainage Improvements 

Budget Year: 2019-2020 

Description: 
Increase capacity on undersized culverts on Long Street from 37th 
Avenue to 38th Avenue and improve grade for efficient storm 
water conveyance.  

Estimated Cost: $65,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Storm Water Enterprise 

  

Project/Asset: Storm Water Master Plan Update 

Budget Year: 2021-2022 

Description: 
Evaluate, model and document long-range planning for storm 
water conveyance system. 

Also is part of our TMDL for DEQ. 

Estimated Cost: $100,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Storm Water Enterprise 

 

Streets 

Most of the resources available for the Streets Division comes from the state in the form of 
Gas Tax revenue. For the 2018-2019 fiscal year, additional revenue is anticipated from the 
state due to the new transportation package passed by the legislature during the 2017 short 
session. Additional monies in the Streets Division budget came from Linn County. During the 
1991-92 fiscal years, Linn County had transferred the jurisdiction 8.78 miles of County roads 
within the City of Sweet Home to the City. Along with these roads came approximately $1.7 
million. 

A good transportation network for any city requires roads that citizens can drive on safely and 
can get from point A to point B with minimal hassle and all the tires still on the vehicle instead 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 67



of a pothole. Like many cities in Oregon, Sweet Home has its fair share of roads that need 
some work. 

 

Project/Asset: 29th Avenue Thin Lift Overlay 

Budget Year: 2019-2020 

Description: Thin lift overlay the roadway for preventive maintenance. 

Estimated Cost: $150,000 

Proposed Fund(s): 
Streets Improvement 

Path Program 

  

Project/Asset: Radar Speed Message Signs 

Budget Year: 2019-2020 

Description: Purchase and install radar speed message signs to inform drivers 
of their current speed vs. the posted speed. 

Estimated Cost: $40,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Gas Tax Fund 

  

  

  

  

  

  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 68



Project/Asset: FY2019-2020 Overlay Project 

Budget Year: 2019-2020 

Description 

Pave streets in poor condition: 

• Juniper Street 

• 32nd Court 

• 45th Avenue (dead end) 

• 46th Avenue at Main Street 

Estimated Cost: $130,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Gas Tax Fund 

  

Project/Asset: Highway 20 STIP Project 

Budget Year: 2019-2020 

Description: City matching funds for ODOT STIP project which includes 
sidewalks from 54th Avenue to Riggs Hill Road. 

Estimated Cost: $300,000 

Proposed Fund(s): Streets Improvement 

  

  

  

  

  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 69



Project/Asset: Strawberry Subdivision Thin Lift Overlay 

Budget Year: 2020-2021 

Description: Thin lift overlay the roadway for preventive maintenance. 

Estimated Cost: $120,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

Project/Asset: 8th Avenue Overlay 

Budget Year: 2020-2021 

Description: Mill and overlay 8th Avenue from Cedar Street to Oak Terrace 
Lane 

Estimated Cost: $120,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

Project/Asset: 42nd Avenue Overlay and Storm Improvements 

Budget Year: 2020-2021 

Description: Identify and install storm catch basins on City streets 

Estimated Cost: $120,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 70



Project/Asset: Overlay Projects 

Budget Year: 2021-2022 

Description: 

Pave gravel streets and streets in poor condition: 

• Juniper Street off 6th Avenue 

• Grape Loop 

• Poplar Street off 9th 

• 13th and Osage 

• Locust Street at 54th 

• Nandina/Osage/Poplar Street and 52nd 

• Nandina from 54th to 56th and alley 

Estimated Cost: To be determined. 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

Project/Asset: Harding Street Half Street Improvements 

Budget Year: 2022-2023 

Description: Half street improvement on south side of Harding Street including 
sidewalk, curb, gutter, catch basins and full street overlay 

Estimated Cost: $300,000 

Proposed Fund(s): To be determined. 

  

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 71



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 72



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 73



REQUEST FOR  
COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
November 12, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
R. Towry, City Manager 
REVIEWED BY: 
R. Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
Enhanced Law Enforcement 
Area Ordinance  
ATTACHMENTS:   
Enhanced Law Enforcement 
Area 

TYPE OF ACTION: 

       RESOLUTION 

       MOTION 

       ROLL CALL 

       OTHER 

 
RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
 

 
TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
Vision Statement: 1. We aspire to make Sweet Home a 
community people find desirable to live in. 5. We aspire to 
create an economically strong environment in which 
businesses prosper. 
Mission Statement:  ... we will be responsive to the 
community while preparing for the future. 
Council Goals: 3. Look for methods to improve 
community safety. 

 
PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:   
Council adoption of the proposed Enhanced Law Enforcement Area (Downtown Expulsion) 
Ordinance 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
The intent of the Enhanced Law Enforcement area was to attempt to address frustrations over 

illegal activity that repeatedly occurs in downtown Sweet Home. This proposed ordinance is not 

about homelessness and it’s not about solving the issue of homelessness. It’s about public 

safety. The city has an obligation to maintain a safe environment for its residents and support 

local business. That means enforcing laws against behavior that infringes on the rights of 

others. Downtown merchants and others have complained that a number of people are 

engaging in behavior that makes it unpleasant to spend time downtown, negatively affecting 

their business.  

It is appropriate to expect people who want to be in the downtown area to obey the law and 

conduct themselves appropriately. Those expectations should be help consistently across 

different demographics.   The emphasis is on behavior. 

After discussion during the October 30th City Council Work Session, by Consensus, a sunset 

clause was determined not to be needed, 3 crimes in 12 months was determined reasonable, 

the proposed map was determined to be reasonable, the ordinance shall be revisited during the 

2020 December City Council meeting, and the following crimes were removed: 

 

1. Illegal Gambling - O.R.S. 167.122 and O.R.S. 167.127 

2. Curfew - SHMC § 9.28.010 

3. Unnecessary Noise - SHMC § 9.20.020 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 74



The proposed Exclusion from the Enhanced Law Enforcement area ordinance also lists multiple 

variances that shall be granted by the Chief of Police or the Municipal Court. These variances or 

waivers would include; 

1. Residing in the exclusion area. 

2. Is employed in the exclusion area. 

3. To visit the residence of a family member in the exclusion area. 

4. To consult with an attorney.  

5. To attend alcohol or drug treatment sessions. 

6. To attend religious services or otherwise exercise a constitutional right.  

7. To pass through the exclusion area. 

8. To attend a public meeting. 

9. To attend a court hearing. 

10. To engage in any activity ordered by the court. 

11. To obtain social, medical or like services. 

12. For employment purposes.  

 

This proposed ordinance is intended as another tool that law enforcement and the Court would 

have to deal with repeated issues in the downtown area. It could be used as a piece of the 

puzzle to address unwanted behavior in the area.  

 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
How does the City of Sweet Home maintain a safe downtown environment for residents, 
merchants and visitors?    
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

• City of Sweet Home Citizens –The community deserves a safe and walkable downtown.  

• City of Sweet Home Staff – This ordinance is intended to be a tool that law enforcement 
and the Court have to deal with repeated issues in the downtown area. 

• City of Sweet Home City Council – This ordinance will aide Council in their stated goals: 
Vision Statement: 1. We aspire to make Sweet Home a community people find desirable 
to live in. 5. We aspire to create an economically strong environment in which 
businesses prosper.  Mission Statement:  ... we will be responsive to the community 
while preparing for the future.  Council Goal: 3. Look for methods to improve community 
safety.  

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
Maintaining a safe and viable downtown will encourage economic development  
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION:  
Sweet Home must have a safe and walkable downtown area. 
 
OPTIONS:  

1. Do Nothing. The ordinance will “die” if no action is taken.  
2. Make a Motion to move Ordinance No, 7 for 2019 – An Ordinance Pertaining to 

Expulsion from Enhanced Law Enforcement Areas of City of Sweet Home, to first 
reading. 

3. Recommend staff make revisions to Ordinance No, 7 for 2019 – An Ordinance 
Pertaining to Expulsion from Enhanced Law Enforcement Areas of City of Sweet Home. 

 
 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 75



RECOMMENDATION:  
 Staff recommends option 2, Make a Motion to move Ordinance No, 7 for 2019 – An 
Ordinance Pertaining to Expulsion from Enhanced Law Enforcement Areas of City of Sweet 
Home to first reading. 
 
 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 76



ORDINANCE BILL NO. 7 FOR 2019 

ORDINANCE NO.  ___ 

 

SWEET HOME ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO EXPULSION FROM ENHANCED LAW ENFORCEMENT 

AREAS OF THE CITY OF SWEET HOME 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to reduce unlawful behavior in certain areas within the City of Sweet Home 

by expulsing certain persons therefrom that are the cause of said unlawful behavior;  

NOW THEREFORE,  

The City of Sweet Home does ordain as follows:  

Section 1. Sweet Home Municipal Code Section 9.20.050 titled ENHANCED LAW ENFORCEMENT AREAS is 

created to read as follows:  

A. Enhanced law enforcement areas are designed to protect the public from those whose illegal conduct poses 

a threat to safety, health or welfare. Enhanced law enforcement areas include the area within the City of Sweet 

Home encircled by the following boundary (and including those portions of the streets and rights-of-way 

mentioned herein): See Exhibit A attached hereto for area in blue.  

B. A person is subject to expulsion for a period of 30 days from entering or remaining within an enhanced law 

enforcement area if that person has been cited to appear and/or arrested within an enhanced law enforcement 

area for a total of three (3) or more instances of unlawful behavior within the enhanced law enforcement area 

within the last 12 months. If the person to be expulsed has been expulsed from that enhanced law enforcement 

area at any time within two years before the date of the present expulsion, the expulsion shall be for 90 days. 

For purposes of this Section, unlawful behavior means violating or being charged with violating the crimes and 

violations listed below: 

1. Criminal Homicide O.R.S. 163.005 

2. 
Rape, Sodomy, and Unlawful Sexual 
Penetration 

O.R.S. 163.355 to O.R.S. 163.411 

3. 
Menacing and Recklessly Endangering 
Another Person 

O.R.S. 163.190 and O.R.S. 163.195 

4. Intimidation O.R.S. 166.155 and O.R.S. 166.165 

5. Harassment O.R.S. 166.065 

6. Disorderly Conduct II O.R.S. 166.025 

7. Discharge of Weapons 

O.R.S. 166.630 and O.R.S. 166.635 

SHMC §§ 9.32.010, 9.32.020, 9.32.030 
(See O.R.S. 166.172) 

8. Providing Liquor O.R.S. 471.410 

9. Minor in Possession of Alcohol O.R.S. 471.430 

10. Assault and Strangulation O.R.S. 163.160 to O.R.S. 163.187 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 77



11. 
Sexual Abuse, Contributing to the 
Delinquency of a Minor and Sexual 
Misconduct 

O.R.S. 163.415, O.R.S. 163.425, O.R.S. 
163.427, O.R.S. 163.435, and O.R.S. 
163.445 

12. Public Indecency O.R.S. 163.465 

13. Controlled Substances 
O.R.S. 167.222, O.R.S. 167.262 and 
O.R.S. 475.525 to O.R.S. 475.894 

14. Criminal Mischief O.R.S. 164.345 to O.R.S. 164.365 

15. Criminal Mistreatment O.R.S. 163.200 and O.R.S. 163.205 

16. Criminal Trespass O.R.S. 164.245 and O.R.S. 164.255 

17. Unlawful Use of a Weapon O.R.S. 166.220 

18. Prostitution and Related Offenses O.R.S. 167.007 to O.R.S. 167.017 

19. Theft O.R.S. 164.015 to O.R.S. 164.140 

20. 
Placing Offensive Substances in Waters, 
on Highways or Other Property and 
Offensive Littering 

O.R.S.164.785 and O.R.S. 164.805 

21. Arson and Related Offenses O.R.S. 164.315 to O.R.S. 164.335 

22. Purchasing Sex with a Minor O.R.S. 163.413 

23. Urinating or Defecating in Public Places SHMC 9.24.050 

24. 
Consumption or Possession of Alcoholic 
Beverages in Public Places 

SHMC 9.20.030 

25 
Any attempt to commit (as defined by O.R.S. 161.405) or conspiracy to commit (as 
defined by O.R.S. 161.450 and O.R.S. 161.455) any of the above offenses. 

 

C. If a person expulsed from an enhanced law enforcement area is found within the perimeter of the enhanced 

law enforcement area during the expulsion period, that person may be arrested for trespass in the second 

degree, as defined by ORS 164.245. A person is not considered to be within the enhanced law enforcement 

area if the person is within a vehicle that is passing through the expulsion area.  

D. The Chief of Police is designated as the person in charge of enhanced law enforcement areas for the 

purpose of issuing expulsion notices in accordance with this Section. Any Sweet Home Police Officer can issue 

expulsion notices in accordance with this Section.  

E. At the time a person is cited to appear and/or arrested within an enhanced law enforcement area for any of 

the offenses specified in this Section, the officer making such cite to appear and/or arrest may deliver to that 

person a written notice expulsing that person from the enhance law enforcement area. Any expulsion notice 

shall not take effect until the sixth day after the notice is issued.  

1. The notice shall specify the area from which the person is expulsed, the length of the expulsion, the penalty 

for entering the excluded area and contain information concerning the right to appeal the expulsion to the 

Sweet Home Municipal Court.  

2. The person to whom the expulsion is issued shall sign a written acknowledgment of receipt or the officer 

shall make a written record of the refusal.  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 78



F. The person to whom an expulsion notice is issued shall have the right to an appeal from the issuance of the 

notice. The expulsion notice will notify the person of the right to appeal and process for appeal.  

1. An appeal of the expulsion must be filed, in writing, within five business days of the issuance of the notice. 

The appeal must be filed with the Municipal Court. A hearing on the appeal shall be held before the Judge of 

the Municipal Court within 20 business days of the appeal. The expulsion shall be stayed during the pendency 

of the appeal. The decision of the Judge of the Municipal Court shall be final. 

2. The City shall have the burden to show by a preponderance of evidence that the expulsion was based upon 

the conduct proscribed by this Section. Copies of documents in its control and which are intended to be used 

by the City at the hearing shall be made available to the appellant at least two days prior to the hearing.  

3. A determination of the Judge of the Municipal Court that the officer who issued the expulsion notice at the 

time had probable cause to cite and/or arrest the person to whom the expulsion notice was issued for the 

conduct described in this Section shall be prima facie evidence that the expulsion was based on conduct 

prohibited by those statutes, ordinances or code.  

G. Variances from the expulsion may be granted at any time during the expulsion period by the Chief of Police, 

or by the Municipal Court.  

1. The Chief of Police or the Municipal Court shall grant a variance to any person who can establish that he or 

she is a resident of the expulsion area, is employed within the expulsion area, or will use the waiver to visit the 

residence of a family member, to consult with an attorney, to attend alcohol or drug treatment sessions, to 

attend religious services or otherwise exercise a constitutional right, to pass through the expulsion area, to 

attend a public meeting, to attend a court hearing, to engage in any activity ordered by a court, to obtain social, 

medical or like services, or for employment purposes. A variance may also be granted when, in the discretion 

of the Chief of Police or the Municipal Court, the expulsion order is no longer necessary to preserve public 

safety, health or welfare. The denial of a variance may be appealed within five business days to the Municipal 

Court using the same procedures as for an appeal of the imposition of the expulsion. The decision of the Judge 

of the Municipal Court shall be final. 

2. All variances shall be in writing, for a specific period of time and only to accommodate a specific purpose, all 

of which shall be stated on the variance.  

3. The person shall keep the variance on his or her person at all times the person is within the expulsion area.  

 

Passed by the Council and approved by the Mayor this____day of _____________, 2019.  

 

Mayor ____________________ 

 

ATTEST:  

_______________________________________  

City Manager - Ex Officio City Recorder  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 79



0 250 500 750 1,000125
Feet Exhibit A

Main Street

Long Street

18
th 

Av
e

22
nd

 Av
e

15
th 

Av
e

Holley Road
12

th 
Av

e

9th
 Av

e

4th
 Av

e

Oak Terrace

18
th 

Av
e

Kalmia Street

15
th 

Av
e

14
th 

Av
e

13
th 

Av
e

9th
 Av

e

12
th 

Av
e

Kalmia Street

8th
 Av

e

11
th 

Av
eCity Limits

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 80



REQUEST FOR  
COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
November 12, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
R. Towry, City Manager 
REVIEWED BY: 
R. Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
9th Avenue Purchase and 
Sale Agreement 
ATTACHMENTS:   
9th Avenue Purchase and 
Sale Agreement 

TYPE OF ACTION: 

       RESOLUTION 

       MOTION 

       ROLL CALL 

       OTHER 

 
RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
 

 
TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
2.5: Continue to implement best financial practices 

 
PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:   
Should City Council authorize the City Manager to authorize the Purchase and Sale Agreement 
for 1730 9th Avenue property? 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
An appraisal was completed on the property on October 19, 2016 by Powell Banz Valuation 
estimating the property value at $250,000 and suggested listing the property 10% - 15% over 
that value. 
 
The Linn County Real Market Value (RMV) was listed as $290,820.00 on land and buildings. 
A Public Hearing was held December 13, 2016 where Council accepted public comment on the 
property, declared the appraised value and adopted Resolution 34 for 2016 declaring the 
property as surplused, authorizing its sale.  
 
Council authorized staff to enter into an agreement with NW Heritage to list the property at 
$349,900.00, the property was listed in June 2017.  One offer was received that was less than 
half of the asking price.   
 
The Council began reducing the listing price until an acceptable office was received.  The 
current offer for $220,000 would net the city +/- $207,585 after expenses and allows the City to 
keep the unique natural rock formation along the river and the ability to build an ADA accessible 
trail to the river. 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
How to maximize the return to taxpayers from the sale of surplus property for its highest and 
best use and get the property back onto the tax rolls. 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

● City of Sweet Home Residents – Residents desire the best return on the property for the 
community. 

● City Council – Council wants to see the property gain the best return for the City. Selling 
the property would put its value back on the tax rolls for the property tax income. 
 
 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 81



ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
1. Property Tax Income – Selling the property would put its value back on the tax rolls for 

the property tax income 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION:  
 
OPTIONS:  

1. Do Nothing - Keep the property listed. 
2. Authorize the City Manager to authorize the Purchase and Sale Agreement for 1730 9th 

Avenue. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

1. Staff recommends option 2, Authorize the City Manager to authorize the Purchase and 
Sale Agreement for 1730 9th Avenue. 

 
 
 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 82



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 83



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 84



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 85



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 86



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 87



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 88



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 89



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 90



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 91



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 92



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 93



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 94



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 95



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 96



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 97



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 98



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 99



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 100



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 101



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 102



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 103



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 104



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 105



REQUEST FOR  
COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA:  
November 12, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Julie Fisher, Admin Assist 
REVIEWED:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 
 
RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
SHMC 2.10 
 
 

TITLE: Budget Committee 
Appointment 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Application submitted for the 
position of Budget Committee. 
 
TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
     RESOLUTION 
 X   MOTION 
      OTHER 

 
PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:  Appointment to the Budget Commission. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT: There are currently vacancies on the Budget Committee.  Lisa 
Willson has applied for appointment. The Administration, Finance, and Property Committee 
conducted an interview on October 22, 2019.  They unamiously recommended that Lisa Willson 
be appointed to the Budget Committee for a three year term. 
     
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:   Vacancy on the Budget Committee. 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

● City of Sweet Home Staff – Staff benefits by having full comittees that provide direction 
and recommendations that are consistent with law. 

● City of Sweet Home Management - Management is more effective and efficient with 
clear, updated, best practices for policy as recommended by committees. 

● Sweet Home Residents – Residents and taxpayers essentially pay the price when 
policies lead to inefficient operations or practices. 

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 

1. None Known 
 

ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: Appoint committee members to vacancies who are 
willing to serve a full term and available for scheduled meetings of the committee. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing 
2. Seek Additional Applicants 
3. Make a Motion to appoint Lisa Willson to the Sweet Home Budget Committee for a three 

year term to expire December 31, 2021. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Make a Motion to appoint Lisa Willson to the Sweet Home Budget Committee for a three 
year term to expire December 31, 2021. 

 
 

#2 Develop transparency in all communication 
Efficient and Effective local government 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 106



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 107



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 108



REQUEST FOR  
COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA:  
November 12, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Julie Fisher, Admin Assist 
REVIEWED:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 
 
RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
Sweet Home City Charter 
 

TITLE: Charter Review Board 
Appointment 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Application submitted for the 
position of Charter Reveiw 
 
TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
     RESOLUTION 
 X   MOTION 
      OTHER 

 
PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:  Appointment to the Charter Review Board. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT: The City of Sweet Home Charter Review Committee will be made 
up of seven citizens residing within the corporate limits of the Sweet Home.  Members will be 
appointed by the City Council and will include three (3) At Large Citizens (Holley and two 
vacancies); two (2) past City Councilors (McQuery and Briana); and two (2) current City 
Councilors (Trask and Gerson). The City Manager will provide technical advisory to the 
Committee.  

The Committee’s role will be to review the City’s current Charter and make recommendations 
for changes to the City Council. Any changes to the Charter must be authorized by a majority 
vote of the Sweet Home Citizens.  

Time commitment for this Committee will be six to twelve months.      

THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:   Vacancy on the Charter Reveiw Board. 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

● City of Sweet Home Staff – Staff benefits by having full comittees that provide direction 
and recommendations that are consistent with law. 

● City of Sweet Home Management - Management is more effective and efficient with 
clear, updated, best practices for policy as recommended by committees. 

● Sweet Home Residents – Residents and taxpayers essentially pay the price when 
policies lead to inefficient operations or practices. 

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 

1. None Known 
 

ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: Appoint committee members to vacancies who are 
willing to serve a full term and available for scheduled meetings of the committee. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing 
2. Seek Additional Applicants 
3. Make a Motion to appoint Lisa Willson to the Sweet Home Charter Review Committee. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Make a Motion to appoint Lisa Willson to the Sweet Home Charter Review Committee. 

#2 Develop transparency in all communication 
Efficient and Effective local government 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 109



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 110



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 111



REQUEST FOR  
COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
November 12, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
J. Fisher, Admin Assistant 
REVIEWED BY: 
R. Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
2019 Personnel Policies 
Revisions 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Section 4(c) Holidays and 
Floating Holidays Policy 

TYPE OF ACTION: 

       RESOLUTION 

       MOTION 

Roll Call Vote: NO 

RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
2019 Personnel Policy  
SHMC 2.48.030 

TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
2.1: Update & streamline process  
2.3: Invest in long term staff stability & training 
2.5: Continue to implement best financial practices 

 
PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:   
Revisions to the 2019 Personnel Policies for the City of Sweet Home: Section 4(c) Holidays and 
Floating Holidays Policy. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
The City of Sweet Home respects and appreciates its employees and recognizes the important 
role they play in the organization and community’s success.  In an effort to bring personnel 
policies up to date, staff proposed, and Council adopted revisions to the 2019 Personnel 
Policies effective January 1, 2019.  Additional necessary amendments have been discovered to 
include updates to the Holidays and Floating Holidays Policy to include a provision if staff is not 
able to use their holiday during the year. (New language is added in red text) 
 

C. When a scheduled holiday falls on a Sunday it will be observed on the following 
Monday. When a scheduled holiday falls on a Saturday, it will be observed on the 
preceding Friday. 
If a non-exempt employee is required to work on any holiday observed by the City, the 
employee shall either be paid or given compensatory time off for all hours worked at the 
rate of one and one-half times the regular rate of pay. 
Employees who are off work on an unpaid leave of absence shall not receive holiday pay. 
Employees who are off work due to sick leave or vacation shall be paid for the holiday in 
lieu of receiving vacation or sick leave pay.   
Each Regular full-time employee will receive 2 Personal Holidays (hours to equal 2 
shifts).  Personal Holidays may be taken at any time during the year and shall be paid if 
not taken within the calendar year. 

 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
Should the City update the 2019 Personnel Policies Section 4(c) Holidays and Floating Holidays 
to align with current Collective Bargaining Contracts? 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

• City of Sweet Home Staff – These changes aim to improve policies regarding Holidays 
and Floating Holidays.  Both updates are advantageous to recruit and retain skilled 
employees. 

• City of Sweet Home City Council – Charter, SHMC 2.48.030, past policies, and past 
practice dictates that the Council is responsible for personnel rules including salary 
administration.  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 112



 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
 None known 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION:  
Sweet Home must have up-to-date policies to recruit and retain employees. 
 
OPTIONS:  

1. Do Nothing. There would be no revisions to the 2019 Personnel Policies. 
2. Approve Amendments to the Sweet Home Personnel Policies Section 4(c) Holidays and 

Floating Holidays. 
3. Recommend additional revisions. Council could review these proposed changes and 

recommend additional revisions. Staff would take these recommendations and revise the 
proposed policy for review at a future Council meeting. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 Staff recommends option 2, Approve Amendments to the Sweet Home Personnel Policies 
Section 4(c) Holidays and Floating Holidays.   
 
 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 113



City of Sweet Home 

POLICY: City of Sweet Home Personnel Policies 
Classification, Compensation and Benefits 
Section 4(c) Holidays and Floating Holidays 

Purpose Establish policies governing the City’s Time Off and Leaves of Absences. 

a) Policy Holidays and Floating Holidays

Regular full-time employees will receive a day off with pay on each of these recognized 
holidays and Regular part-time employees will receive recognized holidays pro-rated 
based upon hours worked: 

New Year’s Day President’s Day 

Memorial Day Independence Day (July 4) 

Labor Day Thanksgiving Day 

The day after Thanksgiving Christmas Day 

Veterans Day 

When a scheduled holiday falls on a Sunday it will be observed on the following 
Monday. When a scheduled holiday falls on a Saturday, it will be observed on the 
preceding Friday. 
If a non-exempt employee is required to work on any holiday observed by the City, the 
employee shall either be paid or given compensatory time off for all hours worked at the 
rate of one and one-half times the regular rate of pay. 
Employees who are off work on an unpaid leave of absence shall not receive holiday 
pay. Employees who are off work due to sick leave or vacation shall be paid for the 
holiday in lieu of receiving vacation or sick leave pay.   
Each Regular full-time employee will receive 2 Personal Holidays (hours to equal 2 
shifts).  Personal Holidays may be taken at any time during the year and shall be paid if 
not taken within the calendar year. 

Supersedes: 
SHPP Section 4(c) 

Adopted by City Council: 
11/12/2019 

Effective Date: 
11/12/2019 

City Manager: 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 114



REQUEST FOR  
COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
November 12, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Blair Larsen, CEDD Director 
 
REVIEWED BY: 
R. Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:  Mid-Valley 
Partnership (MVP) Inter-
governmental agreement 
(Informational) 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Mid-Valley Partnership Inter-
governmental Agreement 
MVP Economic Strategy and 
Action Plan 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
       RESOLUTION 

        MOTION 

        OTHER 

(INFORMATIONAL 

ONLY) 

 
RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
 

 
TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
Aspiration V: Economical Strong Environment 
Goal 4.3: Develop economic and business education 
opportunities with regional partners 

 
PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:   
City Staff have worked with 8 other cities in Linn and Benton Counties on a framework for 
cooperation in economic development. The purpose of this RCA is to present to the Council the 
draft intergovernmental agreement that has come out of this process. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
In 2015, leaders from rural communities in Linn County, including Sweet Home, created the 
“Rural Linn County Economic Development Proposal,” which, among other things, called for a 
regional approach to economic development that focused on rural communities. This idea led to 
8 cities in Linn and Benton Counties joining together to apply for a joint Rural Opportunities 
Initiative Grant through Business Oregon that brought a venture catalyst from RAIN into the 
region. These cities are seeking to continue this regional cooperation through the creation of the 
Mid-Valley Partnership, a framework through which the cities can work together to accomplish 
their common economic goals and respond to economic opportunities. 
 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
How does the City work with other Cities in the region to promote economic development? 
 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

• City of Sweet Home: The City seeks to foster economic development within its 
jurisdiction. At the same time, the City recognizes that economic development in the 
region contributes to economic development within the City. 

• Other participating Cities: Other cities in Linn and Benton counties recognize that they 
share common goals, that their economic futures are aligned with each other, and that 
they each benefit from collaborative economic development efforts. 

• City of Sweet Home Residents: Sweet Home residents deserve to live in both a 
community and region where people and businesses thrive. 
 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 115



ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
1. City of Sweet Home: The agreement carries with it no actual costs (other than staff time) 

or commitment to spend money. Future activities within the partnership may have a 
financial impact, however such spending will be determined and controlled by future City 
budget processes. 

2. Other participating Cities: Other Cities will bear the same financial impact as the City of 
Sweet Home, which will depend on their budget processes. 

 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION:  
An ideal outcome would be to formalize an agreement with other communities in the region to 
cooperate in order to achieve our shared economic development goals. 
 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing.  Make no agreements with other cities in the region to collaborate in 
economic development efforts.   

2. Authorize the Mayor and City Manager to sign the MVP Intergovernmental Agreement. 
This agreement establishes a framework for regional cooperation in economic 
development. 

3. Recommend changes to the MVP Intergovernmental Agreement. The Council could 
request staff to negotiate with the other participating cities to make changes to the 
agreement. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 Staff makes no recommendation at this time. After Council discussion and direction, Staff 
will bring the agreement to Council again for a formal vote. 
 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 116



 

  

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN VARIOUS 
MUNICIPAL CORPORATIONS OF THE STATE OF OREGON  

PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT  

This agreement made and entered into this ____ day of November 2019, by and between 
the following municipalities:  

 

Adair Village Lebanon 

Brownsville Monroe 

Halsey Philomath 

Harrisburg Sweet Home 

 

All listed cities are municipal corporations of the State of Oregon, hereinafter called 
CITIES, and hereby partner for the formation of the Mid-Valley Partnership, hereinafter 
called MVP, for the purpose of building economic development capacities for the region. 
This will be accomplished by creating a joint economic development organization as 
identified in Exhibit A – “Mid-Valley Prosperity Partnership Economic Strategy and 
Action Plan – 2019” and by creating the deliverables listed in Exhibit B.  

PURPOSE  

The CITIES are desirous of enhancing economic development activities that better serve 
the public. The CITIES will utilize resources such as personnel time, capacities, facilities 
and funding to promote the vision, strategy and goals set forth herein. This agreement is 
authorized and provided for by the provisions of ORS 190.010.  

 

IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL CONVENANTS 
CONTAINED HEREIN, THE PARTIES AGREE TO THE 

FOLLOWING TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS: 

 

1. Financial Obligations by CITIES. CITIES shall cost share expenses on 
mutually agreed to terms allowed and authorized by each CITIES governing body 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 117



through the CITIES manager, administrator or authorized designee. 
Responsibility to meet financial obligations will be the sole responsibility of every 
political subdivision who is a party to this agreement.  

During FY 19-20, expenditures by each City shall be within existing appropriate 
budgeted funds. A work program and budget will be developed by the Operations 
Group and proposed to each City in the FY 20-21 and subsequent budget processes. 

2. Service to be Performed by Third-Party Agents. CITIES shall ensure 
performance of any services rendered on behalf of CITIES.   

3. Term. This agreement shall be from November 1st, 2019 through and including 
June 30, 2022. However, the CITIES shall continue until all agents and third-party 
obligations are met once officially authorized by this agreement. The CITIES shall 
review the terms of the agreement and mutually determine if any amendments are 
desired. For any modification(s) to be effective, any amendment, modification or 
otherwise shall be in writing and approved by all parties and placed as an 
attachment or appendices to this agreement.  

4. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, and in accordance with 
the  Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act, each party to this 
Agreement shall  indemnify, defend, save, and hold harmless the other party and 
its officers, employees and  agents from and against all claims, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses, or expenses, arising  from actions derived for the purpose of this 
agreement:  

Failure or refusal of one party to perform or fulfill its responsibilities under this 
Contract or any law, through no fault of the other party. The obligations or rights 
under this section may not be delegated or assigned without the express consent 
of the other parties.  

  The obligations contained in this section shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement.  

5. Entire Agreement. This Agreement signed by all parties is the parties’ final and 
entire Agreement and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous oral or written 
communications between the parties, their agent and representatives. There are 
no representations, promises, terms, conditions or obligations other than those 
contained herein.  

6. Venue. Resolution of any disputes arising out of the performance of this contract 
shall be maintained in the Circuit Court of Linn County and/or Benton County as 
a last resort.  

7. Intent. The intent of this Agreement is to cooperatively create a working 
relationship that will be mutually beneficial.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITIES by resolution duly adopted by its respective 
CITIES Council cause this agreement to be signed by its Mayor and attested by the CITIES 
Recorder, all on the day and year first above written.   

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 118



  

[Signature Pages to be added individually  

to the agreement upon execution.] 

 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 119



Introduction 

Linn and Benton Counties are the heart of the southern part of Oregon’s Willamette Valley, 
stretching east and west from the top of the Cascades to the top of the Coast Range. It is a region 
with long Native American history and heritage, and the history of pioneers from the eastern United 
States traveling on the Oregon Trail to reach this land which was and is rich in natural resources and 
opportunity. The two counties historically have been central to Oregon’s agriculture and timber 
economies. This has included not only raising and harvesting crops and timber, it has included 
industries for processing, packaging, and shipping finished timber and agriculture products. These 
industries historically have been the foundation of employment, culture, and society in the two 
counties.  

But, the economic foundation of the region was greatly shaken with the significant reduction of 
timber harvesting starting in the early 1980’s. This eliminated jobs in the woods, jobs in the mills, 
and jobs in the supporting business community. It created a stagnant and diminishing population 
and economic base in the cities in the region, especially the smaller cities.  

Agriculture remained strong, but the nature of the agriculture industry changed with growing 
commoditization, technology impacts, and global trade.   

During the last two decades, high-technology businesses have located in the region bringing new 
dimensions to the economy with new employment, capital investment, and assessed valuation. The 
bulk of the high-tech growth has been in the large cities in the region, specifically Corvallis and 
Albany. However, the promise of becoming a high-tech hub was tempered with the Hewlett-Packard 
facility in Corvallis starting strong with employment to major reductions in jobs over time. This is a 
symptom of the global market and changing technologies encouraging large corporate businesses to 
rethink their systems, processes, and locations.   

Competitive advantage is key to attracting and retaining businesses such as HP, and just as critical in 
attracting and retaining businesses and investment of all sizes and in all locations.   

Starting with the “Rural Linn County Economic Development Proposal” created by leaders from rural 
cities in Linn County in 2015, leaders from several rural Linn communities continued to meet to 
discuss economic development strategies for the region.  In the fall of 2017, eight cities from rural 
Linn and Benton Counties applied for a Rural Opportunities Initiative Grant through Business Oregon 
to partner with RAIN to bring a Venture Catalyst to the region to work with local entrepreneurs. 
These cities seek to continue the intra-city effort to create efficient and effective structures for 
furthering the economic objectives of the region beyond the Rural Opportunities Initiative grant and 
the work done through RAIN.  

The initial eight-city collaborative consists of Sweet Home, Lebanon, Brownsville, Halsey, Harrisburg, 
Monroe, Adair Village, and Philomath. Together they take the name “Mid-Valley Partnership, or 
MVP. This Strategic Action Plan is the framework for the cities to work together to accomplish 
common economic goals and respond to common economic opportunities.  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 120

SScot
Text Box
4 of 14



The eight-city initial collaborative reviewed the Rural Linn County Economic Development proposal 
created in 2016. This strategy document is based on that work, seeking to update and expand its 
scope to meet needs of the broader Linn-Benton region beyond the RAIN project.  

Assessment of the Environment, Opportunity, and Needs  
  

• Economic growth is happening throughout Oregon with historically high employment rates, 
high business investment, high levels of export, and high revenue and profit. However, this 
growth is primarily happening in larger cities which have the capacity to attract and support 
this level of economic development. Oregon’s rural communities continue to not share this 
high level of economic prosperity.  

• In the Linn-Benton region, Corvallis and Albany have great capacity for supporting economic 
development in dedicated city staff and active economic development organizations. This 
capacity allows these larger cities to effectively respond to queries from potential businesses 
and investors, to respond to Business Oregon and other organizations when they disseminate 
requests for information on behalf of potential businesses, and to facilitate the siting, 
development, operation, and growth of new businesses.  

• None of the cities in this partnership have the same capacity to participate in these high-level 
economic development activities. There is no framework to cooperate with or even 
complement the efforts of Albany and Corvallis in attracting new business investment into 
the region. The smaller communities get left behind.  

• There is significant opportunity for bringing economic investment to the eight cities in the 
partnership if the cities understand how to position and leverage their individual and joint 
assets, and how to respond to opportunities.  

The best opportunity for economic investment in these communities may lie in working 
collaboratively, recognizing several things:  

• The economic, housing, and services markets no longer focus on individual communities, but 
instead on systems tying together regions with multiple communities.  

• Smaller cities can now compete with any larger city as a location for business investment due 
to the advent and growing availability of high-speed and high-capacity internet connections.  

• Smaller cities have the competitive advantage of small-town livability.  

• Each of the partners has assets and opportunities unique to themselves, but potentially 
stronger when tied together and leveraged.  

This strategy is a commitment by each of the cities to work toward a partnership agreement to act 
as a coordinated economic development entity to accomplish three primary goals:  

• To develop a coordinated story about the assets and opportunities available in each of the 
partner cities, and in the network of the cities working together.  

• To research, identify, and pursue economic opportunities created by looking at the partner 
cities and region as a single economic, housing, and services system.  

EXHIBIT A
 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 121

SScot
Text Box
5 of 14



• To be able to respond to requests for information, invitations to respond to opportunities,
create and implement regional economic development strategies, and advocacy for the
region’s interests.

Assets to Promote and Leverage 

The managers and administrators of the Mid-Valley Prosperity Partnership met in August 2019 to 
build the foundation for the update of prior strategic planning. In that meeting, the leaders identified 
several assets of the region that create significant economic opportunity. These are in addition to 
assets identified in earlier work. These are:  

• Higher Education – Two major research universities and one technology focused community
college are in the immediate region. This presents great opportunity for using land and
resources in the eight cities to help the education institutions pursue and expand their
research and development programs.

• Traded Sector – While agriculture and timber economies were historically based on growing
and harvesting, the expectation in today’s economic world is traded sector where the raw
materials created by farm and forest activities are processed locally in manufacturing, food
processing, and creation of finished products and distribution of those products globally. The
cities each have land and resources to expand traded sector businesses.

• Agriculture Businesses – The Willamette Valley, along with all of Oregon, is marked by family
farms rather than large scale corporate farming. These farms compete well relying on the
power of co-ops to create competitive abilities. However, these systems can be fragile.
Strengthening family farms by creating traded sector vertical integration is highly important
to the future. As well, providing farmers with additional income streams to diversify their
business models will help preserve the family farm foundation of the region. These additional
income streams may include produce and meat sales on-site, restaurant services on-site,
farm-stays, and other activities.

• Telecommuters and Home-Based Businesses – With the advent of high-speed internet access
to all communities, the opportunity exists to attract telecommuters and homebased
businesses that can operate completely remotely. These foot-loose entrepreneurs may find
livability opportunities in the eight cities where they can operate and succeed on a global
scale to be highly attractive.

• Micro-businesses – Generally cannot afford the startup costs necessary in a larger city. The
eight cities can provide incubator and micro-business support infrastructure, possible in
conduction with the higher institution institutions, and likely at lower costs.

• Available Infrastructure – The Mid-Valley is poised for economic success for many reasons
including extensive infrastructure. Not only is the area laced with surface trucking and
automobile links including I-5 and several major highways, it has two major rail lines,
pipelines, and a regional and several general aviation airports. Each of the cities has sewer,
water, and storm systems with capacity to meet development needs. Broadband internet
services are widely available. Energy including natural gas and electricity are available at

EXHIBIT A

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 122

SScot
Text Box
6 of 14



highly competitive rates. Now under development is a very large containerized freight 
transfer facility linking trucking to rail amplifying the efficiency of freight movement in the 
mid-Willamette Valley.  

• Physical Alignment – The cities are close together and aligned on a general east/west axis 
across the Valley. They are connected by state highways. The I-5 corridor is crossed by similar 
city alignments east and west of Salem and east and west of Eugene. The fact these 
alignments to the north and south are anchored by large cities gives those aligned regions 
greater economic opportunity. The Linn-Benton aligned cities have not rallied in the past 
around common interests and opportunities but have great potential to thrive if the 
east/west physical alignment is amplified by an east/west economic alignment especially 
recognizing the north/south links offered by I-5 including easy access to commercial aviation 
at Mahlon Sweet Field in Eugene.  

• Affordability and Ease of Development – The rural communities have more streamlined and 
less extensive codes than the surrounding larger cities coupled with a “How can we get to 
yes?” attitude. Land and development costs and fees are generally less than in larger 
communities. The communities support economic development and, working together, can 
be a formidable competitor for investment in retention, expansion, and creation of 
businesses. 

Strategy  

1. Establish a rural-focused primary point of contact collaborating with all existing 
services and organizations to align, focus, and leverage resources and connect 
entrepreneurs to resources  

Existing, relocating, or start-up businesses can all benefit from assistance to successfully implement 
their growth strategies. A plethora of services and support organizations currently exist at state and 
local levels to help, but it is difficult for owners of businesses of any size to easily tap into these 
critical resources. By creating an entity to focus on these rural Linn County interests and represent 
them to other organizations, the Partnership will ensure those resources are better aligned, 
leveraged, and accessed in our communities.  

As a result of fostering collaboration and helping align and focus resources for the eight rural cities:  

• The Partnership will collect, catalog, and share relevant information, organizations, and 
services, and will help enable businesses to access and utilize needed resources. This will 
include an asset map to discover and understand the potential available in the region.  

• The services to be cataloged shall be broad based including workforce development, finance, 
small business management assistance, and other important resources to help businesses 
succeed.  

• By connecting existing and potential businesses to these resources, the Partnership will 
facilitate economic growth and employment opportunities.  

• Where resources do not exist, or are not at the needed scale, MVP will identify those needs 
and work to see they are addressed.  

EXHIBIT A

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 123

SScot
Text Box
7 of 14



• MVP will be a voice for businesses in rural Linn and Benton counties when working with
regional, state, and global entities.

• MVP will plan for realizing the economic potential of the region looking for those places to
connect needs and opportunities.

Outcomes 

• A complete inventory of local land use and zoning laws and mapping with the means to keep
it updated.

• A complete and constantly updated database of land and buildings available for new business
development.

• A catalog of business services including banks, accounting, legal, commercial real estate firms,
and other professional services available to business owners and entrepreneurs, as well as
the government service of Business Oregon, Worksource Oregon, the Small Business
Administration, and other economic development organizations.

• Assistance in knowledge of, understanding, and navigating state, county, and local rules and
regulations.

• MVP becomes a behind-the-scenes partner helping new or existing businesses make the
decisions to locate or expand locally and to increase their success.

• A recognizable organization and regional point of contact to provide advocacy and leadership
in regional economic development efforts, serving as a credible entity to work with
businesses, the Regional Solutions Team, other state and federal agencies, institutions of
higher education, and the Legislature and Congress. Advocacy through the Cascade West
Council of Governments and the League of Oregon Cities is currently underway.

2. Connect new entrepreneurs with learning opportunities and start-up support.

A prominent commercial real estate broker recently commented, “I see lots of potential 
entrepreneurs with great ideas and nothing else.” The “nothing else” these potential businesses lack 
is financial support for initial purchases, technical assistance, management support, legal training 
and support, and market research.  

• MVP will use its developed network of existing contacts, organizations, and services to assist
current and emerging entrepreneurs with accessing the tools and resources they need to
bring their ideas to fruition. For example, understanding market rents for vacant storefronts
in various communities, guidance or help in developing business plans, or referrals for legal
and professional advice on organizational structures and business practices.

Outcomes 

• MVP is employing a rural business accelerator approach using the business incubator model
developed by RAIN and services such as those provided by Senior Corps of Retired Executives
(SCORE).

EXHIBIT A

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 124

SScot
Text Box
8 of 14



• The entrepreneur development work is critical to the region and the partnership will continue 
to sponsor and carry out this work and the program’s recommendations.  

 

3. Help link existing and potential employers with a skilled and trained workforce  

A reliable source of trained people is critical to attracting new business and retaining existing 
businesses. Educational programs are underway through other organizations in the county to 
develop basic work skills. Linn Benton Community College, the City of Albany, Linn County and 
several local high schools have various programs to assist people of all ages to upgrade their skills, 
thus enhancing their employability. Worksource Oregon provides extensive information on training 
and employment opportunities. In addition, employers frequently have job specific training 
programs. However, existing employers also have made clear the need for basic or soft skills, i.e. 
timeliness, personal reliability, grooming.  

• MVP will support the efforts of all these trainers to produce a skilled workforce to meet 
current and future needs.  

• MVP will cooperate with Worksource Oregon and local workforce development entities to 
identify needs, opportunities, and systems for creating a larger and better prepared work 
force.  

• MVP will include training and employment information in both its asset mapping and its 
publicly available information database.  

• MVP will advocate as needed for rural training programs matching the needs of existing and 
potential rural employers.  

Outcomes  

• Businesses are matched with trained workforce.  

• Businesses are attracted to the region due to an existing, skilled workforce.  

 

4. Advocate for the rural communities and the goals of this partnership for improved 
market conditions, and improved legislative, regulatory, or government laws, policies, 
and programs, particularly those directed at workforce readiness and development.  

Rural areas generally lack a voice or a seat at the negotiating table. They may not be aware of 
government programs funding or facilitating economic development efforts, or may lack the capacity 
to access them. Having a voice, particularly one connected to existing economic development service 
organizations, is critical to participating in these efforts. Further, ensuring small, rural oriented 
employers can be heard when legislative or regulatory changes are proposed is also important in 
maintaining employment and job growth.  

• MVP will work with state, county and local governments to ensure regulations and legislation 
are designed to stimulate rather than stifle local rural business growth including land use 
regulations, local fees and charges, building permit processes, and civil engineering 
requirements. 

EXHIBIT A
 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 125

SScot
Text Box
 9 of 14



• MVP will work to simplify this task by developing knowledge and contacts within existing
organizations.

• Oregon Cascade West Council of Governments is a regional resource for community and
economic development efforts. MVP will work with OCWCOG to help leverage economic
development programs and services. Oregon Cascade West Council of Governments also
provides an advocacy platform to advance policy recommendations to better equip rural
settings for economic development. Creating effective relationships with State officials is
crucial for effective State involvement.

Action Plan 

In order to pursue and accomplish the four goals of the Mid-Valley Partnership, a common structure 
for working together and getting things done is critical to create. It is evident a formal agreement 
must be created to establish a formal entity to carry out this work. This entity needs to be funded, 
housed, and staffed appropriately to meet these needs:  

• Facilitate and lead the ongoing work of the partnership.

• Staff resources to pursue the four goals above working with the leaders of the Partnership to
set priorities for specific actions and a detailed work plan to achieve them.

• Continue to plan and pursue a detailed and specific economic strategy based on what the
partner cities can accomplish working together leveraging the resources and assets of the
region.

• Seek outside funding when appropriate to support the work.

• Develop the materials, narrative, and story to be universally used by the Partnership to
effectively communicate what is needed to have an entrepreneur understand the assets,
resources, and opportunities of the partner communities both individually and together.

• Serve as the primary point of contact for inquiries from Oregon agencies, other economic
development organizations, local governments, and existing and potential business entities.

To create this entity, a joint effort and structure will be created by an Intergovernmental Agreement 
between the partner cities. As the joint effort finds success, the structure of the entity might need 
to change, but is determined to be appropriate at this time to use an IGA to create agreement on the 
structure and direction of the economic development entity, to create a system of governance, and 
to create the financial structure defining each city’s contribution.  

It is also determined the initial organization needs to be streamlined and focused on creating the 
required structure and achieving the initial identified goals.   

The Intergovernmental Agreement will be drafted with these elements: 

• Operational Group to Pursue the Outcomes and Strategies of this Plan

 The City Manager or Administrator from each city.

 Other staff as needed.

EXHIBIT A

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 126

SScot
Text Box
10 of 14



• Administration 

 The Cities of Lebanon and Sweet Home will jointly be the conveners and managers of the 
logistics and records of the meetings and activities. 

 The City of Lebanon will be the fiscal agent for the new entity. 
 The Operational Group will determine the need for staff and capital resources to carry 

out the work of the new entity after the first year.  

• Finance 

 The existing working group will determine the needed structure of staffing and resources 
to carry out the first year of the regional entity. This to be reflected in the IGA. 

 The existing working group will determine the needed budget to carry out the first year 
of the regional entity with this to be reflected in the IGA. 

 The existing working group will determine the contribution needed from each of the 
partner cities, proportioned in an equitable manner. This will be incorporated into the 
IGA.  

  

EXHIBIT A

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 127

SScot
Text Box
11 of 14



Next Steps 

ACTION RESPONSIBILITY TIMEFRAME 

Draft the Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA)  

Subcommittee 
Completed by 

November 1st, 2019 

Develop a presentation summarizing 
this Plan to be presented to the City  

Councils of the eight cities with the 
recommendation to approve the  

IGA. The presentations will be made 
by members of the working group 

including the city managers and 
administrators.  

Subcommittee to 
develop 

presentation  

Ready to use by 
November 15th, 2019 

Enter into a three-year IGA based on 
the Goals, Outcomes, and structure  

outlined above 

Advocacy and 
Council support by 
each City Manager 
and Administrator  

Target for IGA approval 
is December 31st, 2019  

Deliver the presentation to other 
cities as requested with an invitation 
to consider joining the partnership  

Entire Group As requested 

Define the Scope of Work and 
Staffing Needs to carry out the Plan 

Operation 
Committee 

March 2020 

Develop a financial plan for on-going 
operations to submit as part of each 
City’s 20-21 and subsequent budget 

processes 

Operations 
Committee 

March 2020 and 
subsequent years 

Revise this strategy as needed and 
update the IGA  

Operation 
committee 

Completed within 
three years of adoption 

of the initial IGA.  

EXHIBIT A

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 128

SScot
Text Box
12 of 14



EXHIBIT ‘B’ 

  

Deliverables 

(Projected over the life of the agreement) 

  

Marketing   

 The creation of a professional logo.  

 Branding: packaging the story of the region for the general public; specifically geared 
to the clientele the collective is attempting to attract and retain.   

 The creation of a professional website.  

  
Asset Mapping  

 Develop a comprehensive list of resources to meet the purpose of this 
partnership including but not limited to:  

o The State of Oregon 

o Non-profit 

o Financial Resources 

o Angel Investors 

o Market Sectors 

o Higher Education Assets 

o Rural Advantages 

o Natural Aspects 

o Amenities  

 Oregon Prospector 

o Populate available property with uniformity. 

o Devote resources to maintain this important data base.  

o Identify all relevant information.  

 
Contract Management & Personnel  

 Determine how to accomplish necessary objectives. 

o Create work requirements 

o Develop budgetary needs. 

o Agree to means of execution.  

EXHIBIT B 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 129

SScot
Text Box
13 of 14



 RAIN Entrepreneurship

o Continue to monitor efforts.

o Ensure objectives are met per State agreements and obligations.

 Personnel

o Discuss advantages of hiring personnel.

o Identify the capacities of existing personnel.

o Determine housing and equipment needs.

EXHIBIT B

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 130

SScot
Text Box
14 of 14



2019 MVP IGA Signature Page 

 

 

 

 

 

Mayor       Manager 

 

Date:       Date: 

 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 131



ORDINANCE BILL NO. ______ FOR 2019 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

SWEET HOME ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO THE USE OF TRANSIT SHELTERS 
IN THE CITY OF SWEET HOME 

WHEREAS, the City desires to provide for the safety, convenience, and comfort 
of transit passengers, for safety of City of Sweet Home personnel, for the preservation 
of service quality in the City’s ability to assist in providing a cost-effective source of 
reliable transportation, and to prevent transit system security vulnerabilities.  

NOW THEREFORE, 

The City of Sweet Home does ordain as follows: 

Section 1. Sweet Home Municipal Code Section (?) titled IMPROPER USE OF 
TRANSIT SHELTERS is created to read as follows: 

A. Definitions.
“Transit shelter” shall mean any and all City-owned or managed bus shelters, non-

covered bench areas related to bus transportation. 

B. Improper use of transit shelter.
No person shall:
(1) Enter or remain upon, occupy or use a bus shelter for purposes other than

boarding, disembarking or waiting for an approved City bus service; 
(2) Lie down on or across the seats or the floor of a bus shelter seating;

(3) Remain in or within 20 feet of a bus shelter seating for a period in excess of one
hour within a 24-hour period.; 

(4) Place any object or substance on the seats of a bus shelter seating that inhibits
the proper use of such seats; or 

(5) Block or obstruct the use of the seats or floor area of a bus shelter.

C. Exclusion.
In addition to other measures provided for in City or State laws, the City may exclude

an individual from any or all transit shelters for a violation of any provision of this 
section, or a violation of any criminal law of the City of Sweet Home or State of Oregon 
while in or within 20 feet of a transit shelter as set forth below.  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 132

DRAFT



D. Issuance of exclusion notice.

In addition to any other remedies or penalties provided by law any Police Officer may 
exclude any person who violates the provisions of this chapter, city ordinance or state 
law from any and all transit shelters in accordance with the provisions of this section. 

E. Procedure for exclusion.
(1) An exclusion issued under the provisions of this section shall be for 30 days. If the

person to be excluded has been excluded from any transit shelter at any time within two 
years before the date of the present exclusion, the exclusion shall be for 90 days. 

(2) At the time a person is cited to appear and/or arrested may deliver to that person
a written notice excluding that person from any or all transit shelters and the area within 
20 feet of the shelter. The exclusion shall take place immediately and apply to all City-
owned transit shelters. A violation of a second or subsequent offense of this article 
during the specified may result in a charge of criminal trespass in the second degree 
(ORS 164.245). 

(3) The notice shall specify the area from which the person is excluded, the length of
the exclusion, the penalty for entering the excluded area and contain information 
concerning the right to appeal the exclusion to the City Manager.  

F. Appeal and variance.
(1) Any person receiving an exclusion notice may appeal the issuance of such notice

by appealing to the City Manager. The appeal of the exclusion must be made to the City 
Manager within five business days of the date of the issuance of the exclusion notice. 
The City Manager or designee shall conduct a hearing on the appeal within ten days 
from receipt of the appeal notice. At the hearing both the appellant and the city shall be 
given an opportunity to provide evidence on the exclusion. The City Manager or 
designee shall decide if an offense did occur and if the length of expulsion is correct by 
substantial evidence on the record. The hearing held under this section may be informal 
in nature but the presentation of evidence at the hearing shall be consistent with the 
presentation of evidence required for contested cases under O.R.S. 183.450. An appeal 
of an exclusion notice automatically stays the exclusion period until a decision on 
appeal is issued by the City Manager or designee. 

(2) An individual with a disability who is transit-dependent shall not be issued a
complete exclusion from the transit shelters unless the person engaged in violent, 
seriously disruptive or criminal conduct, or in conduct posing a serious threat to the 
safety of others or to the operation of the transit system. Absent such a finding, if the 
City Manager determines that a violation was more probable than not, the City Manager 
shall order a qualified exclusion to permit the person with a disability to use the transit 
system for trips of necessity, including travel to and from medical and legal 
appointments, school or training classes, places of employment, obtaining food, clothing 
and necessary household items, or for accessing any critical services. Any person 
asserting the right to a qualified exclusion on the basis of transit dependence shall have 
the burden of establishing transit dependence by a preponderance of the evidence. 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 133

DRAFT

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2f%2f%2fwww.codepublishing.com%2fcgi-bin%2fors.pl%3fcite%3d164.245&c=E,1,adUl0ASZMbxH7p3oBMkRh1sA6lwvovjjQ2w1DXyIx_Vy1NuKMX-gweoQZluZP22kCRVNeM_XJxKCda8DNCt9diGXxPmV0K694AjQu_X-g338gGbOc9qSUFxiBfM,&typo=1


 
(3) Any variance may be granted at any time during the exclusion period by the Chief 

of Police, his or her designee or by the City Manager. 
 
(4) All variances shall be in writing, for a specific period of time and only to 

accommodate a specific purpose, all of which shall be stated in the variance. 
 
(5) The person shall keep the variance on his or her person at all times the person is 

within the area of exclusion. 
 
(6) In the event a person is found to be outside the scope of the terms of the variance, 

the variance shall immediately become void and that person is subject to arrest for the 
crime of criminal trespass in the second degree (ORS 164.245) and/or interfering with 
public transportation (ORS 166.116). (Ord. 5835 § 1, 2014). 

 
(7) Except as stated or provided for in the criminal laws of the State of Oregon, 

violation of this chapter constitutes a violation and may be prosecuted under the 
provisions of Chapter 9.36. 
 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 134

DRAFT

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2f%2f%2fwww.codepublishing.com%2fcgi-bin%2fors.pl%3fcite%3d164.245&c=E,1,ngiipOREuljYRdalrTkzzSOHaLWt0s9a-WDoUhwbu1az8x7bZlfyVIEE0m7ARdhWmg4jSOvuNBU0s_nIN2l2WiIbvf4aHRGgU8w-qyoQo5Tme2iMF38AvRU,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2f%2f%2fwww.codepublishing.com%2fcgi-bin%2fors.pl%3fcite%3d166.116&c=E,1,tVC-k6FvK45bwa6xBQoJJBYuarSxe_pUnrfZmRdRsnc9trYiPlw9aq9Q4ttdjQo201AjptGVcKk3o4WFn1lgVBvcL_F4_HaoOhrdGNF57GHDAYPiPQ,,&typo=1


MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  City Council 
FROM:  City Manager Ray Towry 
DATE:   November 12, 2019 
SUBJECT:  Consensus of the Council to Cancel the December 24th City 

Council Meeting 

 
 
Consensus of the Council is required if the Council chooses to cancel the December 24th City 
Council Meeting per the City of Sweet Home City Council Rules 2(b).  

 
Meeting of the City Council.  

a) Regular Meeting. The City Council will meet for regular meetings on the second and the 
fourth Tuesday of each month unless the Mayor cancels or reschedules the meeting 
upon consensus of the City Council. The Mayor, in conference with the City Manager, 
may cancel a regular meeting for inclement weather or other unforeseen circumstances 
or emergency situations. Regular meetings will convene at 6:30 pm and will be 
adjourned by 10:00 pm unless extended by consent of a majority of the City Council. 

 
 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 135



REQUEST FOR  
COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
November 12, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
B. Neish, Finance Director 
REVIEWED BY: 
R. Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
Transfer Resolution for 
FY2019 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Resolution 30 for 2019 
Resolution 8 for 2018 
FY19 Budget Status 

TYPE OF ACTION: 

       RESOLUTION 

       MOTION 

       OTHER 

 
RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
ORS 294.463(1) 
ORS 294.463(3) 

 
TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
2. (5) Continue to implement strong financial practices  

 
PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:   
To review the 2019 Fiscal Year and adjust the General Fund Executive Department and non-
departmental materials & services budget along with Wastewater organizational units due to 
unanticipated expenses. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
The City of Sweet Home officially wrapped up the 2019 Fiscal Year on June 30, 2019. Up to this 
point, a review of all transactions, balancing and adjustments has occurred to close out the 
fiscal year and prepare for an audit of city finances. Included in this process are any 
adjustments needed to align spending with Council directives. 
 
Council adopted the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Budget on June 26th, 2018 by Resolution No. 8 for 
2018 (included). The city ended the year with a healthy fund balance in all but one of its funds 
and was well within budget as adopted across all but four (4) organizational units. Overall, the 
City underspent expenditure authority by $3.6 million across all city funds. 
 
ORS 294.463(1) states that “except as provided in subsection (2) of this section, transfers of 
appropriations may be made within a fund when authorized by ordinance or resolution of the 
governing body of a municipal corporation. The ordinance or resolution must state the need for 
the transfer, the purpose for the authorized expenditure and the amount transferred.” 
 
Additional funds are needed for the Executive Department in the General Fund due to 
unanticipated expenses in the department’s personnel lines. Additional cash payouts for 
overtime and compensatory and vacation banks resulted in organizational spending of nearly 
$6,000 over the original allocation of $322,297. The City budgets 2% of all payroll expenses per 
department into a contingency line in each fund. The attached intra-fund transfer resolution 
transfers this previously budgeted funding to cover these expenses. 
 
Non-departmental materials and supplies also overspent for the year due to additional bank 
expenses incurred during the fiscal year. As more people turn to using credit or debit cards for 
payment of fees and utility bills, expenses to the City will increase related to processing 
charges. For FY19, the City incurred an additional $13,000 in bank fees with the addition of a 
credit card processor in the Municipal Court and increased card usage. The Finance 
Department is contributing toward this overage with additional monies from their annual 
allotment with the remaining coming from the contingency line. In addition to the 2% of 
personnel costs budgeted annually, the City also budgets 3% of all expenditures in a fund for 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 136



unforeseen expenses that arise during the year. These funds will help cover the additional bank 
charges. After all the General Fund intra-fund transfers are complete, the Contingency line will 
still have $111,677 remaining. 
 
In the wastewater fund, two of the organizational units, treatment expenses and operations 
expenses were overspent for the fiscal year. In the treatment budget, additional expenses of 
$44k in overage charges from Jacobs/Ch2M were incurred as repairs were needed at the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant. Staff was able to reduce expenses for the remainder of the year to 
cover $39k of these costs without adjustment. The remaining $5,000 will need to be covered to 
comply with Oregon Local Budget Law. Staff is proposing to redistribute the budget allocated to 
debt expenditures to cover this overage. Debt expenditures were budgeted at $877,769 for the 
year and payments were just below this amount leaving a surplus. 
 
The expenditure Wastewater Operations division exceeded their budget due to the 
reclassification of expense for the 2019 fiscal year. The budget for debt service expenses 
includes administrative charges as have been budgeted in previous years. This year, staff 
determined it was more appropriate for those administrative fees, paid to DEQ for loan 
management, to be paid from a materials & services account code versus a debt service 
account. To compensate, staff has requested that $44k be transferred from the debt service 
expenditure authority to the operations division to cover this reclassification of expense. 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
Should the City adjust expenditure authority to cover deficits incurred in a few of its 
organizational units in compliance with state law? 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

• City of Sweet Home Citizens – Citizens are involved in all aspects of the budget process 
to ensure open and transparent use of taxpayer funds by the city. 

• City of Sweet Home City Council – The City Council is the budgetary authority for the 
city working in collaboration with the Budget Committee to review and adopt the city’s 
annual budget. The Council is also responsible for any adjustments to the adopted 
budget during a fiscal year. 

• City of Sweet Home Staff – City staff work to ensure the city is meeting legal 
requirements and ensure that the budget is sound and represented truthfully. 

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
State law requires an intra-fund transfer resolution to correct overextended budgets that states 
the need for the transfers, the purpose of the expenditure and the amount to be transferred 
[ORS 294.463(1) and (3). Since this is a transfer resolution, there is no fiscal impact as there is 
no increase in expenditure authority being requested. 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION:  
To comply with state law, a transfer resolution must be completed to close out the 2019 Fiscal 
Year. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing. Council could choose to do nothing at this time. The City could risk an audit 
note as a result and would be required to follow-up with the Oregon Secretary of State’s 
audit division to ensure the City does not over-expend its allocations in future fiscal 
years.   

2. Approve Resolution 30 for 2019. 
3. Refer the matter to the Budget Committee for review. Council could defer this matter to 

the Budget Committee for further review though state law does not necessitate the need 
for Budget Committee involvement. 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 137



 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends options 2, approve Resolution 30 for 2019. This ensures compliance with 
state law and helps to ensure a clean audit for the 2019 Fiscal Year. 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 138



Resolution No. 30 for 2019 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TRANSFER OF APPROPRIATIONS. 

 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statutes 294.456(3) outlines appropriation requirements for Local Budget Law which 

requires that appropriations are made by fund and either organizational unit or program, and; 

WHEREAS, The City of Sweet Home adopted the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Budget on June 26, 2018 by Resolution No. 8 

for 2018 which authorized expenditure authority of $17,878,561, and; 

WHEREAS, the select funds and organizational units incurred unanticipated expenses, and; 

WHEREAS, ORS 294.463(1) allows for intra-fund transfers of expenditure authority by resolution, 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF SWEET HOME authorizes a transfer of 2019 expenditure 

authority in the following funds and organizational units to address various needs: 

 

Fund Organizational Unit Existing  Changes  Adjusted 
General Fund Executive/Council 322,297  6,000  $328,297 
 Finance 447,829  (1,000)  $446,829 
 Materials & Services 629,127  10,000  $639,127 
 Contingency 126,677  (15,000)  $111,677 
       
Wastewater Treatment 615,419  5,000  $620,419 
 Operations 334,035  38,600  $372,635 
 Debt Service 877,769  (43,600)  $834,169 
       
       
       
       
       

 Total $3,353,153  -0-  $3,353,153 
 

This resolution shall take affect upon its passage and approval. 

 

PASSED by the Council and approved by the Mayor this 12th day of November 2019 

 

____________________________________________ 

Mayor 

 

____________________________________________ 

         City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 139



General Ledger
REVENUES VS.
EXPENSES

User: bneish
Printed: 11/7/2019 8:58:21 AM
Period 01 - 13
Fiscal Year 2019

Account Number Description Period
Amt

End Bal Budget Variance %
ExpendCollect

100 GENERAL FUND
002 Non-Departmental
100-002-480-110 Staff Pay 0.00 44,306.46 50,410.00 6,103.54 87.89
100-002-480-112 City Attorney 0.00 56,993.04 56,994.00 0.96 100.00
100-002-480-130 Overtime 0.00 68.66 0.00 -68.66 0.00
100-002-480-210 Group Insurance 0.00 15,002.65 17,436.00 2,433.35 86.04
100-002-480-220 FICAMedicare 0.00 7,709.48 8,184.00 474.52 94.20
100-002-480-230 Retirement 0.00 5,325.00 6,050.00 725.00 88.02
100-002-480-250 Unemployment Contribution 0.00 68.16 140.00 71.84 48.69
100-002-480-260 Workers' Compensation 0.00 27.74 1,689.00 1,661.26 1.64

Personal Services 0.00 129,501.19 140,903.00 11,401.81 91.91

100-002-480-310 MembershipsDues 0.00 6,824.27 10,384.00 3,559.73 65.72
100-002-480-311 Subscriptions 0.00 58.07 0.00 -58.07 0.00
100-002-480-320 Professional Services 0.00 33,861.02 75,000.00 41,138.98 45.15
100-002-480-321 Labor Relations 0.00 50,311.40 35,000.00 -15,311.40 143.75
100-002-480-331 Auditing 0.00 18,800.00 0.00 -18,800.00 0.00
100-002-480-333 Lien Search 0.00 5,853.00 0.00 -5,853.00 0.00
100-002-480-340 Technical Services 0.00 19,764.75 29,400.00 9,635.25 67.23
100-002-480-341 Codification of Ordinance 0.00 1,731.90 5,000.00 3,268.10 34.64
100-002-480-423 Custodial Services 0.00 7,067.17 0.00 -7,067.17 0.00
100-002-480-430 Equipment Repair & Maintenance 0.00 1,910.50 0.00 -1,910.50 0.00
100-002-480-431 Building Repair & Maintenance 0.00 15,221.83 7,000.00 -8,221.83 217.45
100-002-480-432 Grounds Maintenance 0.00 423.50 0.00 -423.50 0.00
100-002-480-520 Insurance 0.00 167,361.49 165,800.00 -1,561.49 100.94
100-002-480-521 SAIF Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
100-002-480-540 Advertising 0.00 21.90 0.00 -21.90 0.00
100-002-480-541 Tourism 0.00 20,000.00 15,000.00 -5,000.00 133.33
100-002-480-580 TrainingTravel 0.00 2,388.11 0.00 -2,388.11 0.00
100-002-480-610 Office Supplies 0.00 621.58 250.00 -371.58 248.63
100-002-480-611 Cleaning Supplies 0.00 622.07 8,500.00 7,877.93 7.32
100-002-480-612 Operating Supplies 0.00 231.92 0.00 -231.92 0.00
100-002-480-614 Tools & Small Equipment 0.00 565.18 0.00 -565.18 0.00
100-002-480-615 Bank Expense 0.00 53,008.05 40,000.00 -13,008.05 132.52
100-002-480-619 Computers 0.00 4,061.37 0.00 -4,061.37 0.00
100-002-480-622 Electricity 0.00 182,477.95 194,383.00 11,905.05 93.88
100-002-480-623 Phone 0.00 1,981.67 0.00 -1,981.67 0.00
100-002-480-630 Food & Beverage 0.00 145.50 0.00 -145.50 0.00
100-002-480-803 Special Events 0.00 733.03 0.00 -733.03 0.00
100-002-480-805 Safety Incentive Program 0.00 3,975.00 5,000.00 1,025.00 79.50
100-002-480-806 Elderly Nutrition 0.00 1,200.00 1,210.00 10.00 99.17
100-002-480-807 Senior Center 0.00 30,095.00 32,200.00 2,105.00 93.46
100-002-480-808 Community Grants 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 100.00
100-002-480-810 Economic Development 0.00 2,738.21 0.00 -2,738.21 0.00

Material & Services 0.00 639,055.44 629,127.00 -9,928.44 101.58

Revenue Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
Expense Total 0.00 768,556.63 770,030.00 1,473.37 0.9981
002 Non-Departmental 0.00 768,556.63 770,030.00 1,473.37 99.81

GL - REVENUES VS. EXPENSES (11/07/2019 - 08:58 AM) Page 1City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 140



General Ledger
REVENUES VS.
EXPENSES

User: bneish
Printed: 11/7/2019 8:58:24 AM
Period 01 - 13
Fiscal Year 2019

Account Number Description Period
Amt

End Bal Budget Variance %
ExpendCollect

100 GENERAL FUND
003 Executive
100-003-413-110 Staff Pay 0.00 174,552.96 166,784.00 -7,768.96 104.66
100-003-413-111 Council Pay 0.00 6,420.00 6,420.00 0.00 100.00
100-003-413-130 Overtime 0.00 1,820.88 0.00 -1,820.88 0.00
100-003-413-210 Group Insurance 0.00 44,194.29 47,546.00 3,351.71 92.95
100-003-413-220 FICAMedicare 0.00 13,765.65 13,198.00 -567.65 104.30
100-003-413-230 Retirement 0.00 27,690.66 26,186.00 -1,504.66 105.75
100-003-413-250 Unemployment Contribution 0.00 236.20 217.00 -19.20 108.85
100-003-413-260 Workers' Compensation 0.00 41.15 247.00 205.85 16.66

Personal Services 0.00 268,721.79 260,598.00 -8,123.79 103.12

100-003-413-310 MembershipsDues 0.00 2,269.82 7,749.00 5,479.18 29.29
100-003-413-311 Subscriptions 0.00 1,877.35 0.00 -1,877.35 0.00
100-003-413-320 Professional Services 0.00 5,445.14 500.00 -4,945.14 1,089.03
100-003-413-340 Technical Services 0.00 3,683.85 2,000.00 -1,683.85 184.19
100-003-413-430 Equipment Repair & Maintenance 0.00 154.04 3,000.00 2,845.96 5.13
100-003-413-441 Building Rental 0.00 150.00 0.00 -150.00 0.00
100-003-413-442 EquipmentVehicle Rental 0.00 3,704.82 0.00 -3,704.82 0.00
100-003-413-540 Advertising 0.00 2,248.59 17,450.00 15,201.41 12.89
100-003-413-550 Duplicating & Printing 0.00 2,899.23 0.00 -2,899.23 0.00
100-003-413-580 TrainingTravel 0.00 12,049.06 15,000.00 2,950.94 80.33
100-003-413-610 Office Supplies 0.00 3,419.46 4,500.00 1,080.54 75.99
100-003-413-611 Cleaning Supplies 0.00 10.93 0.00 -10.93 0.00
100-003-413-612 Operating Supplies 0.00 2,977.56 0.00 -2,977.56 0.00
100-003-413-613 UniformsClothing 0.00 972.38 250.00 -722.38 388.95
100-003-413-614 Tools & Small Equipment 0.00 11.97 0.00 -11.97 0.00
100-003-413-617 Furniture 0.00 201.43 0.00 -201.43 0.00
100-003-413-618 Postage 0.00 714.21 0.00 -714.21 0.00
100-003-413-619 Computers 0.00 2,630.18 0.00 -2,630.18 0.00
100-003-413-621 Natural Gas 0.00 181.36 0.00 -181.36 0.00
100-003-413-622 Electricity 0.00 2,514.52 7,250.00 4,735.48 34.68
100-003-413-623 Phone 0.00 3,407.55 0.00 -3,407.55 0.00
100-003-413-624 TVInternet 0.00 1,045.27 0.00 -1,045.27 0.00
100-003-413-626 GasolineFuel 0.00 449.96 0.00 -449.96 0.00
100-003-413-630 Food & Beverage 0.00 2,137.07 2,000.00 -137.07 106.85
100-003-413-803 Special Events 0.00 2,989.13 0.00 -2,989.13 0.00
100-003-413-805 Safety Incentive Program 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
100-003-413-808 Community Grants 0.00 500.00 0.00 -500.00 0.00

Material & Services 0.00 58,644.88 59,699.00 1,054.12 98.23

100-003-413-741 Machinery 0.00 814.97 2,000.00 1,185.03 40.75
Capital Outlay 0.00 814.97 2,000.00 1,185.03 40.75

Revenue Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
Expense Total 0.00 328,181.64 322,297.00 -5,884.64 1.0183
003 Executive 0.00 328,181.64 322,297.00 -5,884.64 101.83

GL - REVENUES VS. EXPENSES (11/07/2019 - 08:58 AM) Page 1City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 141



General Ledger
REVENUES VS.
EXPENSES

User: bneish
Printed: 11/7/2019 9:00:55 AM
Period 01 - 13
Fiscal Year 2019

Account Number Description Period
Amt

End Bal Budget Variance %
ExpendCollect

100 GENERAL FUND
004 Finance
100-004-415-110 Staff Pay 0.00 235,338.24 229,138.00 -6,200.24 102.71
100-004-415-210 Group Insurance 0.00 85,013.33 88,191.00 3,177.67 96.40
100-004-415-220 FICAMedicare 0.00 17,667.19 16,498.00 -1,169.19 107.09
100-004-415-230 Retirement 0.00 33,699.16 32,777.00 -922.16 102.81
100-004-415-250 Unemployment Contribution 0.00 327.79 1,262.00 934.21 25.97
100-004-415-260 Workers' Compensation 0.00 52.14 338.00 285.86 15.43

Personal Services 0.00 372,097.85 368,204.00 -3,893.85 101.06

100-004-415-310 MembershipsDues 0.00 744.00 400.00 -344.00 186.00
100-004-415-311 Subscriptions 0.00 83.26 0.00 -83.26 0.00
100-004-415-320 Professional Services 0.00 388.14 0.00 -388.14 0.00
100-004-415-331 Auditing 0.00 17,269.00 26,000.00 8,731.00 66.42
100-004-415-332 Investment Services 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00
100-004-415-333 Lien Search 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00
100-004-415-340 Technical Services 0.00 25,303.46 22,263.00 -3,040.46 113.66
100-004-415-430 Equipment Repair & Maintenance 0.00 71.91 2,200.00 2,128.09 3.27
100-004-415-442 EquipmentVehicle Rental 0.00 1,830.74 0.00 -1,830.74 0.00
100-004-415-540 Advertising 0.00 1,403.87 0.00 -1,403.87 0.00
100-004-415-550 Duplicating & Printing 0.00 474.57 0.00 -474.57 0.00
100-004-415-580 TrainingTravel 0.00 3,395.66 1,500.00 -1,895.66 226.38
100-004-415-610 Office Supplies 0.00 3,857.20 5,500.00 1,642.80 70.13
100-004-415-612 Operating Supplies 0.00 317.54 0.00 -317.54 0.00
100-004-415-613 UniformsClothing 0.00 393.25 200.00 -193.25 196.63
100-004-415-617 Furniture 0.00 179.99 0.00 -179.99 0.00
100-004-415-618 Postage 0.00 2,397.50 0.00 -2,397.50 0.00
100-004-415-619 Computers 0.00 352.74 0.00 -352.74 0.00
100-004-415-620 UTILITIES 0.00 0.00 4,562.00 4,562.00 0.00
100-004-415-621 Natural Gas 0.00 361.26 0.00 -361.26 0.00
100-004-415-622 Electricity 0.00 4,306.92 0.00 -4,306.92 0.00
100-004-415-623 Phone 0.00 4,804.53 0.00 -4,804.53 0.00
100-004-415-624 TVInternet 0.00 1,933.94 0.00 -1,933.94 0.00
100-004-415-630 Food & Beverage 0.00 465.85 0.00 -465.85 0.00

Material & Services 0.00 70,335.33 77,625.00 7,289.67 90.61

100-004-415-741 Machinery 0.00 4,244.35 2,000.00 -2,244.35 212.22
Capital Outlay 0.00 4,244.35 2,000.00 -2,244.35 212.22

Revenue Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
Expense Total 0.00 446,677.53 447,829.00 1,151.47 0.9974
004 Finance 0.00 446,677.53 447,829.00 1,151.47 99.74

GL - REVENUES VS. EXPENSES (11/07/2019 - 09:00 AM) Page 1City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 142



General Ledger
REVENUES VS.
EXPENSES

User: bneish
Printed: 11/7/2019 8:59:56 AM
Period 01 - 13
Fiscal Year 2019

Account Number Description Period
Amt

End Bal Budget Variance %
ExpendCollect

550 WASTEWATER FUND
550-000-300-000 BEG. WORKING CAPITAL 0.00 -326,839.29 -335,032.00 -8,192.71 97.55
550-000-340-003 SEWER USER FEES 0.00 -2,936,392.30 -3,087,673.00 -151,280.70 95.10
550-000-361-000 INTEREST 0.00 0.00 -500.00 -500.00 0.00
550-000-390-001 MISC. REVENUE 0.00 -227.70 -1,000.00 -772.30 22.77

Revenues 0.00 -3,263,459.29 -3,424,205.00 -160,745.71 95.31

Revenue Total 0.00 -3,263,459.29 -3,424,205.00 -160,745.71 -0.9531
Expense Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
009 Public Works
550-009-332-110 Staff Pay 0.00 35,648.18 45,457.00 9,808.82 78.42
550-009-332-130 Overtime 0.00 3.30 0.00 -3.30 0.00
550-009-332-210 Group Insurance 0.00 8,593.31 11,866.00 3,272.69 72.42
550-009-332-220 FICAMedicare 0.00 1,344.16 3,464.00 2,119.84 38.80
550-009-332-230 Retirement 0.00 7,757.58 6,858.00 -899.58 113.12
550-009-332-250 Unemployment Contribution 0.00 45.77 23.00 -22.77 199.00
550-009-332-260 Workers' Compensation 0.00 385.39 611.00 225.61 63.08
550-009-432-110 Staff Pay 0.00 139,193.43 147,240.00 8,046.57 94.54
550-009-432-130 Overtime 0.00 1,284.31 3,000.00 1,715.69 42.81
550-009-432-210 Group Insurance 0.00 48,371.89 53,864.00 5,492.11 89.80
550-009-432-220 FICAMedicare 0.00 10,526.79 11,220.00 693.21 93.82
550-009-432-230 Retirement 0.00 18,152.29 19,200.00 1,047.71 94.54
550-009-432-250 Unemployment Contribution 0.00 195.67 119.00 -76.67 164.43
550-009-432-260 Workers' Compensation 0.00 2,257.35 4,092.00 1,834.65 55.16

Personal Services 0.00 273,759.42 307,014.00 33,254.58 89.17

550-009-332-320 Professional Services 0.00 549,148.61 530,640.00 -18,508.61 103.49
550-009-332-321 Labor Relations 0.00 1,134.00 0.00 -1,134.00 0.00
550-009-332-340 Technical Services 0.00 7,078.10 0.00 -7,078.10 0.00
550-009-332-430 Equipment Repair & Maintenance 0.00 93.95 1,000.00 906.05 9.40
550-009-332-442 EquipmentVehicle Rental 0.00 48.00 0.00 -48.00 0.00
550-009-332-540 Advertising 0.00 162.50 0.00 -162.50 0.00
550-009-332-580 TrainingTravel 0.00 271.28 0.00 -271.28 0.00
550-009-332-612 Operating Supplies 0.00 51.28 0.00 -51.28 0.00
550-009-332-617 Furniture 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00
550-009-332-618 Postage 0.00 112.50 0.00 -112.50 0.00
550-009-332-630 Food & Beverage 0.00 58.10 0.00 -58.10 0.00
550-009-332-803 Special Events 0.00 2.10 0.00 -2.10 0.00
550-009-432-310 MembershipsDues 0.00 714.00 1,000.00 286.00 71.40
550-009-432-311 Subscriptions 0.00 323.91 0.00 -323.91 0.00
550-009-432-320 Professional Services 0.00 74,478.73 5,000.00 -69,478.73 1,489.57
550-009-432-321 Labor Relations 0.00 567.00 0.00 -567.00 0.00
550-009-432-340 Technical Services 0.00 20,672.21 30,000.00 9,327.79 68.91
550-009-432-423 Custodial Services 0.00 217.47 0.00 -217.47 0.00
550-009-432-430 Equipment Repair & Maintenance 0.00 2,181.23 3,600.00 1,418.77 60.59
550-009-432-431 Building Repair & Maintenance 0.00 1,303.16 0.00 -1,303.16 0.00
550-009-432-432 Grounds Maintenance 0.00 82.35 2,000.00 1,917.65 4.12
550-009-432-442 EquipmentVehicle Rental 0.00 1,560.35 1,000.00 -560.35 156.04
550-009-432-540 Advertising 0.00 42.21 1,000.00 957.79 4.22
550-009-432-550 Duplicating & Printing 0.00 535.51 0.00 -535.51 0.00
550-009-432-580 TrainingTravel 0.00 863.90 4,500.00 3,636.10 19.20
550-009-432-610 Office Supplies 0.00 424.39 3,000.00 2,575.61 14.15
550-009-432-611 Cleaning Supplies 0.00 178.24 0.00 -178.24 0.00

GL - REVENUES VS. EXPENSES (11/07/2019 - 08:59 AM) Page 1City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 143



Account Number Description Period
Amt

End Bal Budget Variance %
ExpendCollect

550-009-432-612 Operating Supplies 0.00 10,522.80 27,000.00 16,477.20 38.97
550-009-432-613 UniformsClothing 0.00 1,695.39 3,000.00 1,304.61 56.51
550-009-432-614 Tools & Small Equipment 0.00 1,505.24 3,600.00 2,094.76 41.81
550-009-432-617 Furniture 0.00 46.06 1,500.00 1,453.94 3.07
550-009-432-618 Postage 0.00 2.27 0.00 -2.27 0.00
550-009-432-619 Computers 0.00 176.64 0.00 -176.64 0.00
550-009-432-621 Natural Gas 0.00 565.01 0.00 -565.01 0.00
550-009-432-622 Electricity 0.00 2,554.53 9,100.00 6,545.47 28.07
550-009-432-623 Phone 0.00 2,515.00 0.00 -2,515.00 0.00
550-009-432-624 TVInternet 0.00 1,026.33 0.00 -1,026.33 0.00
550-009-432-626 GasolineFuel 0.00 5,606.52 0.00 -5,606.52 0.00
550-009-432-630 Food & Beverage 0.00 29.07 0.00 -29.07 0.00

Material & Services 0.00 688,549.94 628,440.00 -60,109.94 109.56

550-009-332-720 Buildings 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00
550-009-432-730 Projects & Improvements 0.00 360.00 0.00 -360.00 0.00
550-009-432-741 Machinery 0.00 3,146.47 0.00 -3,146.47 0.00
550-009-432-742 Vehicles 0.00 18,957.96 0.00 -18,957.96 0.00

Capital Outlay 0.00 22,464.43 5,000.00 -17,464.43 449.29

550-009-470-801 Debt Service - Principal 0.00 566,194.00 691,194.00 125,000.00 81.92
550-009-470-802 Debt Service - Interest 0.00 270,314.00 186,575.00 -83,739.00 144.88

Debt 0.00 836,508.00 877,769.00 41,261.00 95.30

Revenue Total 0.00 -3,263,459.29 -3,424,205.00 -160,745.71 -0.9531
Expense Total 0.00 1,821,281.79 1,818,223.00 -3,058.79 1.0017
009 Public Works 0.00 1,821,281.79 1,818,223.00 -3,058.79 100.17

GL - REVENUES VS. EXPENSES (11/07/2019 - 08:59 AM) Page 2City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 144



REQUEST FOR  
COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
November 12, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
B. Neish, Finance Director 
REVIEWED BY: 
R. Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
Funds Transfer and Interfund 
Loan for Jim Riggs 
Community Center 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Resolution 31 for 2019 
FY19 Budget Status 

TYPE OF ACTION: 

       RESOLUTION 

       MOTION 

       OTHER 

 
RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
ORS 294.468(1) 
ORS 294.463(2)(d) 

 
TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
2.5 - Continue to implement financial “best” practices 

 
PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:   
To review the 2019 Fiscal Year and establish an interfund operating loan from the General Fund 
to the Jim Riggs Community Center Fund for overdrawn fund balance. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
The City of Sweet Home officially wrapped up the 2019 Fiscal Year on June 30, 2019. Up to this 
point, a review of all transactions, balancing and adjustments has occurred to close out the 
fiscal year and prepare for an audit of city finances. Included in this process are any 
adjustments needed to align spending with Council directives. 
 
Additional funds are needed for the Jim Riggs Community Center Fund to cover a fiscal year 
end deficit balance. The JRCC Fund is used to pay for expenses related to the operation of the 
Community Center including, but not limited to building maintenance and utilities. The City pays 
for these expenses initially and receives monthly reimbursements from the two organizations 
using the facility, the Boys & Girls Club of Greater Santiam and the Sweet Home Senior 
Center/Linn Shuttle. 
 
ORS 294.468(1) states that “it shall be lawful to loan money from any fund to any other fund of 
the municipal corporation whenever the loan is authorized by official resolution or ordinance of 
the governing body.” 
 
For the 2019 fiscal year, two issues occurred that created a deficit balance in the fund. First, 
after turnover in the Finance Department in calendar year 2018, the Finance staff was unaware 
that the City was supposed to be including general building expenses in the reimbursement 
requests sent to the Boys & Girls Club and the Senior Center. This resulted in a $5,700 balance 
which was not covered by these organizations and therefore was the perceived responsibility of 
the City. After a discussion with the Boys & Girls Club and the Senior Center, it was determined 
that the monthly reimbursement request was also supposed to include these general 
maintenance expenses. City staff has fixed this error for the 2020 fiscal year but needs to 
determine how to cover the other expenses incurred for fiscal year 2019. 
 
The second issue, adding $5,300 to the fund deficit is the lack of contributions from the Boys 
and Girls Club. This is the second year for which the Boys and Girls Club had an outstanding 
balance due at fiscal year-end. In the prior year, this balance was ultimately paid but state law 
requires that the fund be made whole at year-end. The City received an audit note regarding 
this issue during the 2018 fiscal year audit. For 2019, staff is requesting a temporary 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 145



contribution from the City’s General Fund to be repaid once the Boys and Girls Club has caught 
up on their payments. This typically occurs after the annual Boys and Girls Club Fall Auction 
which takes place in early November. 
 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
Should the City utilize the General Fund to cover a deficit in another fund? 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

• City of Sweet Home Citizens – Citizens are involved in all aspects of the budget process 
to ensure open and transparent use of taxpayer funds by the city. 

• City of Sweet Home City Council – The City Council is the budgetary authority for the 
city working in collaboration with the Budget Committee to review and adopt the city’s 
annual budget. The Council is also responsible for any adjustments to the adopted 
budget during a fiscal year. 

• City of Sweet Home Staff – City staff work to ensure the city is meeting legal 
requirements and ensure that the budget is sound and represented truthfully. 

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
State law requires that all funds maintain a zero or positive balance during budget development 
and throughout the fiscal year. At the end of fiscal year 2019, the General Fund (Fund 100) had 
an estimated fund balance of $1.6 million from which the attached resolution requests $11,000 
to cover the deficit in Fund 300 (Community Center). $5,300 of this will be considered an 
operating loan to be repaid by December 31, 2019 after receipt of the Boys & Girls Club 
reimbursement funds. 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION:  
To comply with state law, a transfer of funds must be completed to close out the 2019 Fiscal 
Year. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing. Council could choose to do nothing at this time. The City could risk an audit 
note as a result and would be required to follow-up with the Oregon Secretary of State’s 
audit division to ensure the City does not over-expend fund balances in future fiscal 
years.   

2. Approve Resolution 31 for 2019. 
3. Request operating funds from a different fund (i.e. Library, Water, Project & Equipment 

Reserve, etc.) to cover the fund deficit in Fund 300. Council could decide that the 
request for funds to cover a deficit could come from another funding source. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends options 2, approve Resolution 31 for 2019. Since staff is requesting that 
some of the general building expenses be covered by the City for the 2019 fiscal year, this is the 
cleanest option and complies with spending rules for restricted revenues. 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 146



Resolution No. 31 for 2019 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TRANSFER OF FUNDS TO COVER A FUND DEFICIT. 

 

WHEREAS, Oregon Local Budget Law requires that revenues must equal expenses, and; 

WHEREAS, the Jim Riggs Community Center Fund, Fund 300, recorded revenues of $27,046, and; 

WHEREAS, the Jim Riggs Community Center Fund, Fund 300, recorded expenditures of $37,569, and; 

WHEREAS, the beginning fund balance in Fund 300 was negative $772, and; 

WHEREAS, the net result is a deficit fund balance of $10,524, and; 

WHEREAS, the Boys & Girls Club of the Greater Santiam currently owes the city $5,300, 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF SWEET HOME authorizes a transfer of funds from the General 

Fund, Fund 100, to the Jim Riggs Community Center Fund to resolve a deficit fund balance in the amount of $11,000. 

Further be it resolved that $5,300 of the transfer be an interfund loan to be repaid the earlier of December 31 of 2019 or 

upon receipt of the balance due from the Boys & Girls Club of the Greater Santiam. 

 

 This resolution shall take affect upon its passage and approval. 

 

PASSED by the Council and approved by the Mayor this 12th day of November 2019 

 

____________________________________________ 

Mayor 

 

____________________________________________ 

         City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 147



General Ledger
REVENUES VS.
EXPENSES

User: bneish
Printed: 11/7/2019 12:57:40 PM
Period 01 - 13
Fiscal Year 2019

Account Number Description Period
Amt

End Bal Budget Variance %
ExpendCollect

300 COMMUNITY CENTER OPERATING
FUN

300-000-300-000 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 0.00 772.35 0.00 -772.35 0.00
300-000-338-000 SENIOR CENTER 0.00 -15,895.96 -23,000.00 -7,104.04 69.11
300-000-338-001 BOYS & GIRLS CLUB 0.00 -11,921.97 -23,000.00 -11,078.03 51.83
300-000-361-000 INTEREST 0.00 0.00 -30.00 -30.00 0.00

Revenues 0.00 -27,045.58 -46,030.00 -18,984.42 58.76

Revenue Total 0.00 -27,045.58 -46,030.00 -18,984.42 -0.5876
Expense Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
002 Non-Departmental
300-002-480-320 Professional Services 0.00 1,178.50 0.00 -1,178.50 0.00
300-002-480-430 Equipment Repair & Maintenance 0.00 1,347.13 5,000.00 3,652.87 26.94
300-002-480-431 Building Repair & Maintenance 0.00 5,677.90 250.00 -5,427.90 2,271.16
300-002-480-611 Cleaning Supplies 0.00 312.00 0.00 -312.00 0.00
300-002-480-612 Operating Supplies 0.00 863.39 0.00 -863.39 0.00
300-002-480-621 Natural Gas 0.00 7,125.98 0.00 -7,125.98 0.00
300-002-480-622 Electricity 0.00 21,064.57 40,779.00 19,714.43 51.66

Material & Services 0.00 37,569.47 46,029.00 8,459.53 81.62

Revenue Total 0.00 -27,045.58 -46,030.00 -18,984.42 -0.5876
Expense Total 0.00 37,569.47 46,029.00 8,459.53 0.8162
002 Non-Departmental 0.00 37,569.47 46,029.00 8,459.53 81.62

GL - REVENUES VS. EXPENSES (11/07/2019 - 12:57 PM) Page 1

Revenue Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
Expense Total 0.00 37,569.47 46,029.00 8,459.53 0.8162
300 COMMUNITY CENTER OPERATING

FUN
0.00 10,523.89 -1.00 -10,524.89 -1,052,389.00

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 148



  
SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 

ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
 

October 22, 2019 
 
The meeting of the Administration and Finance Committee was called to order at 6:02 p.m. in the 
Sweet Home City Hall.   
 
Staff Present: City Manager Ray Towry and Public Works Director Greg Springman 
 
Registered Visitors: None 
 
Media: None 
 

Committee Members: Councilor Goble, Chair (AB), Councilor Gerson (P), Councilor Trask (P), 
Mayor Greg Mahler (Alternate for Councilor Goble) (P)       

       
The purpose of the Administration and Finance Committee meeting was to interview Lisa Willson 
for vacancies on the Budget Committee and the Charter Review Committee. 
 
The Committee will make their recommendations to the City Council for appointments during the 
November 12, 2019 meeting. 
 
With no further business the meeting adjourned. 
 
The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council Administration and Finance 
meeting on October 22, 2019 
 
 
_____________________________  _____________________________ 
City Manager Ray Towry                                    Mayor Greg Mahler  
 
 
 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 149



Library Advisory Board Minutes 
October 10, 2019 

 
Present at the meeting Kevin Hill, Charlene Adams, Don Hopkins, Eva Jurney and Rose Peda 
 
By consensus the Board excused the absence of Brittany Donnell 
 
Motion to approve the minutes for the September 12, 2019 meeting was made by Kevin Hill with 
a second to the motion by Charlene Adams.  Motion approved with 4 ayes and 0 opposed. 
 
The fiscal report for the month of September was reviewed by the Library Board.  Banned books 
week, voter registration day and the Sarah McQuaid performance were discussed.   
 
Eva Jurney asked about the status of the Adult Literacy Program with LBCC after seeing the 
article in the New Era. Rose explained that the Library is partnering with LBCC and other Linn 
Libraries, through a grant, to provide adult literacy tutoring using community volunteers.  A 
coordinator has been hired and is working on the study manuals and the volunteer training 
program.    
 
Unfinished Business 
There was no unfinished business. 
 
New Business 
Rose informed the Library Board about the substance of the conference call with FFA 
Architects, City Manager (Ray Towry), and City Engineer (Joe Graybill).  During this call various 
scenarios were discussed including renovation, a new building and different site locations. 
Discussion followed regarding various sites and funding.   
 
The “new” books are now in the center of the Library so patrons have easier access to them.  
This required shifting and weeding the paperback collection. 
 
Don Hopkins made a motion to re-elect the current officers.  The motion was seconded by Eva 
Jurney.  Motion approved with 4 ayes and 0 opposed.  Kevin Hill remains Chairperson and 
Charlene Adams is Vice-Chair. 
 
The meeting was adjourned. 
 
The next meeting is November 14, 2019 at 4:30pm 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 150



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Ray Towry, City Manager 
FROM:  Rose Peda, Library Services Director 
DATE:   November 4, 2019 
SUBJECT:  Sweet Home Library Activities Report / October, 2019 
 
  
 
 

Statistics 
Patrons checked out 3574 items. 
Patrons placed 290 items on hold.  
Staff issued 28 new library cards to patrons and 7 nonresident cards. 
493 individuals signed on to use the computers in the library and printed 794 pages. 
Resource sharing savings was $3,043.77 for the month of October.   
 

Events 
 
The library held 9 storytimes for babies, toddler and preschoolers with 74 children and 47 adults 
in attendance.  Staff read to 108 first and second graders at Oak Heights Elementary.   
 

 
Children were invited to come to the Library, during school closures for parent/teacher 
conferences, and build with Legos.  
 
The library partnered with the Boys and Girls Club and participated in the Trick or Treat Street 
hosted by Holley Church. 
 
Update on the Adult Literacy Program 
Linn-Benton Community College, Linn Library Consortium and the GED Network are partnering 
together to offer adult literacy programs funded by a grant from the State Library of Oregon.  
The Linn Libraries will locate community members interested in training to be tutors and LBCC 
will provide the tutees.  To date, Sweet Home, has 4 community members interested in being 
tutors.   
 
Amanda Makepeace, Adult Literacy Program Coordinator of the Library Services and 
Technology Act Grant, stated, “5 percent of incoming college students who are native English 
speakers score below the fifth grade reading level and wouldn’t be able to get through the Adult 
Basic Skills courses.” 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 151



2019   Statistics for August       Statistics for September      Statistics for October 
 
PATRON ACTIVITY 

 
PATRON ACTIVITY 

 
PATRON ACTIVITY 

OPAC Logins                      256 OPAC Logins                     255 OPAC Logins            290 
SIP2 Logins                        458 SIP2 Logins                       439 SIP2 Logins               419 
   
CIRCULATION AND RENEWALS CIRCULATION AND RENEWALS CIRCULATION AND RENEWALS 
Checkouts                          3703 Checkouts                         3244 Checkouts                    3574 
Renewals by Staff               403 Renewals by Staff              456 Renewals by Staff         394 
Renewals by OPAC             242 Renewals by OPAC            256 Renewals by OPAC       270 
   
HOLDS REQUESTED HOLDS REQUESTED HOLDS REQUESTED 

Holds by Staff                     170 Holds by Staff                     142 Holds by Staff                 141 
Holds by OPAC                    129 Holds by OPAC                    138 Holds by OPAC                145 
   
ACTIVE PATRONS             2367 ACTIVE PATRONS            2337 ACTIVE PATRONS          2324 
   
NEW PATRONS NEW PATRONS                  NEW PATRONS                  
Resident                              26 Resident                             35 Resident                            28 
NonResident                        3 NonResident                       7 NonResident                      7 
   
ITEM COUNTS                     36096 ITEM COUNTS                   36175 ITEM COUNTS                35970 
   
PUBLIC ACCESS COMPUTERS PUBLIC ACCESS COMPUTERS              PUBLIC ACCESS COMPUTERS              
Logins this month                546 Logins this month                 413 Logins this month                493 
Pages printed                       839 Pages printed                        687 Pages printed                       794 

 
Resource Sharing Savings $2,357.07           Resource Sharing Savings $2,676.04            Resource Sharing Savings  $3,043.77 
 
 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 152



QUARTERLY CIRCULATION STATISTICS
BY ITEM TYPE

2019 August September October
Auto Manuals 0 0 1
Books on CD 120 102 96
Children's Board Books 94 152 131
Children's Easy Readers 193 199 224
Children's Fiction 351 264 297
Children's Graphic Novels 164 110 123
Children's NonFiction 195 227 181
Children's Picture Books 523 401 502
Children's Ready to Read 88 90 61
Children's 100 Books 44 49 47
Children's VOX Books 140 121 135
DVDs 710 643 829
Fiction 364 316 341
Magazines 47 51 34
Music CD 32 22 34
Mystery 290 273 276
New Fiction 211 188 222
New NonFiction 84 62 78
New Mystery 124 91 105
New Science Fiction 11 3 2
NonFiction 186 241 235
Northwest 25 23 19
Paperback General 30 15 3
Paperback Mystery 50 39 29
Paperback Romance 36 33 21
Paperback Westerns 3 0 0
Paperback Science Fiction 10 2 3
Science Fiction / Fantasy 24 38 37
Teen Fiction 144 101 96
Teen Graphic Novel 35 36 31
Teen NonFiction 5 5 2
Westerns 40 59 42
Ukuleles 2 0 1
TOTALS 4375 3956 4238

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 153



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  City Council 
  Ray Towry, City Manager 
  Interested Parties 
FROM:  Blair Larsen, Community and Economic Dev. Director 
DATE:   November 12, 2019 
SUBJECT:  Community and Economic Development Department Report for October, 2019 
 
  

The Community and Economic Development Department (CEDD) consists of the City’s 
Building, Planning, Engineering, Economic Development, Code Enforcement, and Parks and 
Recreation programs. The following is a summary of activities and notes on current projects 
from October 1st, to October 31st, 2019. 
 

1. BUILDING 
 Summary of Building Program Permits Issued. 

 

Construction Category Number of Permits 

Residential 1 and 2 Family Dwellings 3 

Residential Manufactured Dwellings 0 

Residential Structural  6 

Residential Mechanical Permits 16 

Residential Plumbing 4 

Residential Demolition 1 

Commercial Mechanical 0 

Commercial Structural 9 

Commercial Plumbing 2 

Commercial Demolition 0 

Commercial Site Development 0 

Total Permits 41 

Value Estimate of All Permits $1,621,629.72 

Fees Collected $23,963.12 
 

2. PLANNING 
 Summary of Planning Division Applications Approved. 

 

Application Type Number of Permits 

Conditional Use 1 

Variance 0 

Partition 0 

Property Line Adjustments 1 

 
 The Department is currently working on updates to the Sweet Home Municipal Code 

(SHMC), Planning Commission procedures, and updating and improving Land Use 
Applications with OCWCOG staff. A comprehensive code update is being readied for staff 
and peer review, and will be presented to the Planning Commission and public through the 
review process. We have submitted a grant application to the Oregon Department of Land 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 154



Community and Economic Development Department Report for June 2019  2 

Use and Conservation to complete this work, along with a potential housing needs analysis 
and code audit to ensure compliance with state law. 

 There are 7 applications in the queue for November. 
 

3. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 Work on a property partition and right-of-way width change for 24th Ave is progressing. This 

is part of a comprehensive 24th Avenue Corridor Improvement Project. Due to requests from 
the neighboring property owners, the plan to partition the City’s Maintenance Yard property 
will now move to the planning commission in order to approve a required access easement. 
Once the easement has been approved, the partition will be completed and the appropriate 
documents for the land swap will be drafted and signed. A Request for Council Action will be 
necessary to approve the partition application and adopt a resolution to swap the land. We 
hoped to bring that before you at the November 12th meeting, however state law requires an 
appraisal of the property. We are now in the process of collecting bids for that work, and will 
bring the issue to you after we have an appraisal report. 

 Staff met with ODOT and Representative Sprenger and learned that prior communication 
from ODOT was incorrect, and that an application for a new rail crossing at 24th Avenue can 
be approved if the City and Railroad are in agreement, and if the proposed crossing meets 
ODOT’s safety requirements. We are preparing an application and will be negotiating with 
Albany & Eastern Railroad to ensure that we are in agreement prior to submitting the 
application to ODOT. 

 Staff is working on a Master Plan of the old Weyerhaeuser mill site that will detail property 
divisions, zoning designations, and roadway accesses. We are working with Linn County to 
determine the location of access easements and potential rights-of-way. 

 

4. CODE ENFORCEMENT 
 Summary of Actions. 

CE currently has 34 open cases. Violations resolved in October: 6. Cases in Progress 
(Investigating): 7. Notices issued: 6. Pending Citations: 0. Citations: 0. Complaints with no 
violation noted: 3. 

 

Enforcement Type Number of Cases 

Animal 4 

Blight 1 

Public Right-of-way 2 

Illegal Burning 1 

Junk Vehicle 1 

Minimum Housing 3 

Occupying an RV 7 

Public Nuisance 2 

Tall Grass & Weeds 1 

 

The City’s Code Enforcement Officer responds to complaints submitted through the City’s 
website, and actively patrols the City and works to resolve identified code violations. 
 

5. PARKS  
 Ground has been broken, and we are preparing site plans for Phase II of the Sankey Park 

Improvements. Playground equipment has been ordered and we are awaiting delivery. 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 155



Community and Economic Development Department Report for June 2019  3 

 The Park and Tree Committee has begun to discuss and review the City’s street tree 
policies. 

 Staff has begun work on the Sweetheart Run, which is planned for next February. We have 
received a $2,000 grant from the Confederated Tribes of Siletz Indians for this event. 

 

6. OTHER PROJECTS 
 Preliminary work on the 18th Ave & Willow St Neighborhood Water LID (Proposed) is making 

progress. Staff has a list of properties and owners, and a boundary and cost estimate for a 
Water Line Local Improvement District. Work is commencing on proposed street and 
sidewalk improvements for the same area. 

 Now that the Council has authorized ownership of the sculpture in the ODOT right-of-way 
near the East Linn Museum, we are waiting on a proposed Intergovernmental Agreement 
from ODOT, which will come before you when it is ready. 

 Consultation with ODOT improvements at 22nd Ave & Main St. is ongoing, multiple options 
are on the table, including lighting, location, median refuge, RRFB pedestrian lights, etc. 
Staff is working on an informational RCA on the issue. 

 The property line adjustment for the east property line at the NCH is still pending. The 
adjacent owners are in favor of it, and a map has been created. A Request for Council 
Action is necessary to authorize the property line adjustment and adopt a resolution for the 
land swap. However, state law requires an appraisal of the properties, and we are now in 
the process of collecting bids for that work. After we receive an appraisal report, we will 
bring the issue before you at a Council meeting. 

 The ODOT Foster Lake Sidewalk Project: ODOT has begun site survey work. Construction 
is estimated to start next year. 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 156



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Ray Towry, City Manager 
FROM:  Greg Springman, Public Works Director 
DATE:   November 5, 2019 
SUBJECT:  Public Works Activities Report/October 2019 
 
  
 
This memorandum provides a brief periodic update of specific projects, WTP/WWTP O&M and 
Compliance status, and activities performed by the Public Works Department. 
 
 
Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) Dashboard 
This dashboard section summarizes work done on key maintenance activities. Goals will be 
adjusted over time as workloads shift to keep up with current requirements. Routine activities are 
tracked monthly. Seasonal activities are tracked on a year-to-date basis. 
 

Potholes repaired
5/30

Street sweeping miles
442/300

Locate tickets
37/40

Water leak repairs
3/5

Hydrant flushing/service/repairs (YTD)
300/200

Playground equipment inspection 4x each
11/16

Clean parks restrooms & garbage 8x each
67/72

Mow each park 12x each (YTD)
114/96

Sewer main miles CCTV (YTD)
0.5/15

Sewer main miles cleaned (YTD)
0.5/15

Manhole leak repairs (YTD)
5/8

Catch basins inspect & clean (YTD)
32/500

October 2019

 
 
 
 
 
 

Work Orders

Posted: 737

Completed: 759

Top 10 Categories

Leaf Collection Vacuuming - 

Streets

139

Water Turn Ons/Offs 104

Bathrooms/Garbage 67

Locates 41

City Hall 3225 Main 39

Park Maintenance 28

Citizen Portal - Leaf collection 25

Public Works Facility 17

Meter Re-Read 17

Tree/Brush Trimming - Streets 12  

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 157



 
WWTP and WTP Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 
 
 
 

Waste Water Treatment Facility – September 2019 

34.4 MG of wastewater treated this month 

2.25 MG max daily flow discharged 

1.15 MG average daily flow discharged 

44,140 lbs. solids inventory 

Notes: 

Two Violation to permit for Month, one Weekly Average CBOD mg/L and one Weekly 
Average CBOD lbs.  Written report submitted to DEQ. 

 

Water Treatment Facility – September 2019 

35.44 MG treated this month 

1.41 MG used for backwashing filters 

1.181 MG average daily demand 

Notes: 

No violations for September 2019. 

 
 
Current & Upcoming Projects 
 
 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvement Project 

Scope: Upgrades to equipment & processes for DEQ Compliance. 

Status: Project on schedule. WWTP Final design commenced in August, 2019. In September 
2019, staff met with Architect designing the WWTP Admin building to discuss building layout, 
vision for the structure and project schedule.  

 

Water Loss 

Scope: Staff will continue to identify water leaks throughout the 54 miles of water distribution 
system.  

Status: PW staff has completed all repairs on the identified water leaks. Over 100 repairs 
have been completed by PW staff to date. Staff will calculate water loss quarterly. Staff 
purchased new leak detection equipment to begin program in-house. 

 
 
 
 
 City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 158



Radar Speed Signs 

Scope: Purchase 6 radar speed signs throughout the community. 

Status:  Staff ordered 6 radar speed signs. Installed two signs, one on 1st Avenue, second 
on Airport Road. Permits applications has been submitted to ODOT for multiple location 
along State Highway 20 and Highway 228. 

 

City Engineer of Record Selection 

Scope: Contract Engineering Services to assist with City projects and development/planning 
support. 

Status:  Staff developed RFP to select consultant. The selection process is closed, and staff 
selected Murraysmith for the Engineer of Record in July, 2019. 

 

Sankey Park Improvements 

Scope: Install new paths, lighting, and playground equipment.  

Status: Staff will schedule a meeting to “value engineer” the Sankey Park project in November 
2019. 

 

2019 Overlay Project 

Scope: 2” pavement overlay on Juniper St., 32nd Ct., 45th Ave., and 46th Ave. at Main St. 

Status: Project in design. 

 

DEQ - 18th Ave Groundwater Contamination Resolution 

Scope: Support DEQ project to resolve neighborhood issue of contaminated groundwater 
east of 18th Ave and north of Tamarack St. 

Status:  DEQ determined that the apparent groundwater contamination was mainly the 
result of chemical byproducts created during the sample test process, and that the 
groundwater is within established safety limits.  Community members will proceed with LID. 

 

Water Distribution System Evaluation 

Scope: Murraysmith will perform a hydraulic water model of the water distribution system to 
pinpoint operations deficiencies and develop a plan to mitigate water system deficiencies.  

Status: Kick off meeting water held in September 2019. City staff issued Murraysmith Task 
Order to begin the project.  

 

Linn Shuttle Bus Shelters 

Scope: Support Linn Shuttle grant project to install bus shelters at highway locations. 

Status: Shelter construction is complete. 

 

City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 159



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 160



City Council Packet 11-12-19 pg. 161


	(a) City Council Agenda 11-12-19
	(C)(a)(1) 10-22-19 Council Minutes
	(C)(a)(2) Council Minutes 10-30-19 - ES
	(C)(a)(3) Council Minutes 10-30-19- WS
	(E)(a)(1) WEFTEC and project schedule presentation
	(E)(a)(2) Schedule_SweetHomeWWTP_FinalDesign_CM_29Oct2019_External
	(E)(c)(1) RCA - 2020 Capital Improvement Plan
	(E)(c)(2) Capital Improvement Plan-2
	Introduction
	CAPITAL PLAN
	Library
	Police
	Public Works


	(e)(d)(1) Council Response Letter Jacobs 110619
	(E)(g)(1) RCA - Enhanced Law Enforcement Area
	(E)(g)(2) Enhanced Law Enforcement Area Ordinance
	(E)(g)(3) ExclusionZone - 4th to 22nd
	(E)(h)(1) RCA - 9th Avenue Purchase and Sale Agreement
	(E)(H)(2) 9th Avenue Purchase Agreement
	Blank Page

	(E)(i)(1) RCA - Transfer Resolution FY19
	(E)(i)(2) Transfer Resolution FY19
	(E)(i)(3) FY19 Non-Departmental
	(E)(i)(4) FY19 Executive
	(E)(i)(5) FY19 Finance
	(E)(i)(6) FY19 Wastewater
	(F)(a)(1) RCA - Appointment Budget Committee - Willson
	(F)(a)(2) Lisa Willson Committee App - Redacted
	(F)(b)(1) RCA - Appointment Charter Review - Willson
	(F)(b)(2) Lisa Willson Committee App - Redacted - Copy
	(F)(c)(2) 07-09-19 RCA_Revised Personnel Policies - Holidays and Floating Holidays
	(F)(c)(2) 4(c) Holidays and Floating Holidays Policy Sweet Home
	(F)(d)(1) 2019 MVP IGA (Group Review)(Final)
	(F)(d)(1) Informational RCA-MVP IGA
	(F)(d)(2) 2019 MVP IGA (Group Review)(Final)
	(F)(d)(2) Signature Page
	(F)(e)(1) Bus Shelter Ordinance
	(F)(f)(1) Memo - Concensus of the Council to cancel December Meeting
	(F)(h)(1) RCA - Funds Transfer Resolution FY19
	(F)(h)(2) Funds Transfer Resolution FY19
	(F)(h)(3) JRCC
	(H)(1) City Council 10-22-19 Admin & Finance
	(I)(c)(i)(1) Library Advisory Board Meeting Minutes October 10 2019
	(I)(c)(i)(2) City Council Report (Library Happenings October 2019)
	Statistics
	Events

	(I)(c)(i)(3) Patron Statistics for August, September, October  2019
	(I)(c)(i)(4) Circulation Statistics by Item type August, September, October  2019
	Sheet1

	(I)(c)(ii)(1) CEDD Monthly Report 11-12-19
	(I)(c)(iii)(1) PW Monthly Report 100119
	(I)(d)(i)(1) Budget Calendar
	(X) 11-12-19 Comcast Notice



